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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ORICINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Board of Directors of Indeks Bilgisayar Sistemleri Mithendislik Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi
A} Aundit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1) Opinion

We have audited the accompanyving consolidated financial statements of Indeks Bilgisayar Sistemleri
Miihendislik Sanayi ve Ticarct Anonim Sirketi { the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group™) which comprise the consolidated statement of balance sheets as at 31 December 2021,
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income. consalidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash-flow for the year then ended and the notes to
the consolidated financial siatements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinicen, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the lnancial position

of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and i1s financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS/TAS").

1) Basis for Opinion

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the Standards on Independent Auditing (the “3IA™) that are pan of
Turkish Standards on Auditing 1ssuwed by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
(the “POA™) and Capital Markets Board of Torkiyve (the “CMB™). Our responsibilitios under these standards ane
Turther described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements”
section of our report. We hereby declare that we are independent of the Group in accordance with the Ethical
Rules for Independent Auditors (the “Ethical Rules™) and the ethical requirements regarding independent audit in
regulations issued by POA that are relevant 1o our audit of the consolidated financial statements. We have also
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Ethical Rulbes and regulations. We believe that
the audin evidence we have obtained during the independent audit provides a sufficient and appropriate basiz for
our opinion

3 Kev Aundit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial staterents of the current period. Key audit matiers were addressed in the context of
our independent audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers,

A rrermibeee of MG WORLDAWIDE



- MG Batyimse Denetim A5,

Paolatis Mazs All Bvian Caddesd Mo K25 34358 Maslak-lstanhud
Tel 00313 246 24 76 Faor 490 207 346 44 28

et wannw misdersstim comtr E-mail: info@mbdenetimooomtr

BUSINESS SOLUTIONS Thcarnen Sichl Mo: 456551
WORLFANDE Marsis Ma: 0351007485500 36

Casl and Cash Eguivalents
Key Andit Matter Hiow ower awndis addressed e key aidii mvtter

As of December 31, 2021 the Company s balance of the | We performed the following procedures in relation to
cash and cash equivalents s amount to  TL | the testing of cash and cash equivalents:

2.095.002.284, and sccount for 30,13 % percent of total | 1y shis context: we participate year end cash count
RS checking 1o confirm the cash and cash equivalents do
Cash and cash equivalents account group and its were | “5% Biciumgis rele \eieions of feeign GaETency

chosen as a key sudit matter due to the significance in ﬁ ml':ml-[:;im of I:'“'E“ r'I““ time deposit have
financial siatements. n chisg usmg the recaloulation method.

The Company's accounting policies, and amounts related | The Group has no blocked deposits and Examinations
to cash and cash equivalents explained in Note: 2 and | régarding the classification in the financial statements
MNote: 6, have been check in cash and cash equivalents. The
appropriacy of the explanations in the related
footnetes for Cash and Cash Equivalents has becn
eviluated. As a result of the reviewed, there was no
significant materiailty,

Recoverability of Trade Receivabiles
Key Andit Matter How owr awdis addresed the key audit matter

Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, | We performed the following procedures in relation to |

2021 include trade receivables of TL 3.553.845.206 | the testing of trade receivables and provision for trade

which constitutes 51,12% of the Indeks Bilgisayar’s total | receivables considering the guorantees for trade

assels, An impairment provision for trade receivables of | receivables for unrecoverable amounts:

Indeks Bilgisayar amounting to TL 39.340.860 included affsctivinets :

in the consolidated financial statements. The Group uses ‘\Eﬁh—;ﬂwm:::lﬁﬂd ﬁﬂ:;mm mmi“uf ﬁ;rnmﬁ:

estimates  and policies for recoverability of trade receivables risk and receivables from dealers.

iva inidi isi

receivables and determination of the provisions. W hie vliomnd and et e O vl i

on receivables based on the overdue trade receivables

Trade receivables and its recoverability are material to | with considering credit insurance and guaraniees

Indeks Bilgisayar's consolidated financial statements. | received,

Therefore, this area i3 considered as h.t:r audhit matter, We have evalupted 3rd party reconciliations for the

balances of the trade receivables and we have

The Company's accounting policies, amounts and | 3lculated  exchange rate  wvaluation of trade
related to trade receivables explained in Note: | receivables, rediscount on trade receivables (deferred

3, Mote: 10 and Mote: 38, interest income etc.) and other valuations mcluded in

the consolidated financial statements.

We have evaluated provision amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements including aging
results, economic assumplions, past  collection
performances, lawsuits and execution proceedings, the
guarantees obiined for trade receivables, credit
insurance and subsequent measurement of trade
receivable collections.

We have reviewed the sufficiency of disclosures made
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
with respect to trade receivables.

A pember of MGHNORLDWAIDE
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Trverstory ard immbm'lr af fnveniory
Key Audit Matter How owr awdit addressed the key andit mairer

Balance of the inventories is amomnt 1o TL 953 955474,
and account for 14,15% percent of total assets.

Products i the company's inventory are subject to the
risk of being impaired due 1o the rapid technological
development and changes in the market. Provision for
imventories amount te TL 24, 102404 withm this group.

The Company Management uses cerfain estimates and
policies 1o determine the provision to reduce obsolescent
inventories and slow moving invenlory items o net
realizable value.

Existence of mventories and net impainmanten loss has
been determined as a kev andit matier dwe to the
importance of Mventory account,

The Company’s acoounting policies and amounts related
to inventory explained in Note: 2 and Note: 13,

Our audit procedures base on to cvaluate the
Company's inventories do exist and net realizable
amount of the inventories.

In this comext; we participate year end Inventlory
checking to confirm the inventories do exist. In
addition we audit documents related with purchasing
mventories during the vear.

Provision for invenlory impairment recoginized for
the purpose of lower cost of invemories 1o their net
realizable amount. We tested the Company’s policy
related with inveniory impairment by tumover days of
imventores.

The Group's provision calculation method was
critically evalsated, the stock Impaiment was
evaluated, and the provision stock  impairment
provisions were recaloulated,

The inventory valmtion method of the Company has
been confirmed with controfling sample inventary
cards,

Trade Payables

Key awdil prairers

Flow awr awdit adidressed the key audis muniter

Consolidated financial statements as of 31 December
202) include trade pavables of TL 4.253.217.565 which
constitutes 61, 18% of the [ndeks Bilgisayar's total
linkilities.

Trade payables are maoterial to Indeks Bilgisayar's
consolidated financial statements, Therefore, this area is
considered as key audit matter.

The Company s sccounting policies and amounts relaed
io trade payables explained in Mote: 2 and Notez 10

We performed the following procedures in relation 10
the testing of trade payables:

We have evaluated 3rd parly reconciliations for the
balances of the trade payables and we have calculated
exchange rate valuation of trade pavables, rediscount
on trade pavables included in the consolidated
financial statements.

We have reviewed the sufficiency of disclosures made
in the consolidated financial satements of the Group
with respect to trade payables.

& marmiber of MGTWORLEADE
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Revenue

Key audil matters How onr andit addressed the key andit manter

Recognition and determination of revenue in correct | We performed the following procedures in relation to
period determined as a key sudit matter for audit of the | the testing recognition of revenus:

consoluiated financial statemients. | Evaluating the revenue as a process by observing sales
The Company's accounting policies and amounts related [ and delivery procedures,

to trade payables explained in Note: 2 and Note: 28, | Evaluating the audit procedures are focused on the

assessment of invoices issued but risk and ownership
| have not been transferred,

Evaluating the details of the sales returns which are
requested for the audit date whether there is a high
amount of retwmns incurred after the balance sheet
date,

Evaluating the invoice, delivery note, warehouse exit
and delivery documents are analvzed by sampling
method and the actual delivery is made before the
balance sheet date.

We had no material findings refated to recognition of
revenue as & result of these procedures.

4y Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee for the Consalidaied Financial
Statemenis

The Group management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with TFRS/TAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or ermor,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, martters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management gither intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process,

& easmiber of MGHWCRLDWIDE
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=) Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis
Responaibilities of independent auditors in an independent audit are as follows:

Chur aim is 1o oblain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements a5 a whole are free
from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an independent auditor's report that
includes our opinion, Ressonable assurance expressed as a result of an independent audit conducted in
accordance with SIA is a high level of assurance which is published by Capital Markets Board of Tilrkive (the
“CMB") but does nol guarantee that & maserial missistement will always be detected. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or emror. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users twken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an independent medit conducted in accordance with SIA which is published by Capital Markets Board
of Tirkive (the “CMB"), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throoghout the
andit, We also:

& [dentify and assess the risks of material missiatement in the consolidated Mnancial statements, whether
due 10 fraed or emror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may
invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, migrepresentations or the override of mternal control.

*  Asgess the internal control relevant to the andit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Giroup's intermal control.

* Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimales and related disclosures made by the Group management,

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obained, whether o material uncerfainty exisis relaied o events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group™s ability 1o contmue as a going concem. IF we
conclude that a material uncenaindy exists, we ane required 10 draw attention in our auditor’s report (o
the related dischosures in the consolidated Mnancial statements or, if such disclosures are inadoquate, to
maodify odir opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audin evidence obtained up to the date of our
independent auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group o cease (o
continue a5 a going concem.

¢  Evaluste the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
meluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions pnd events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Wl.-
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit, We e
responsible for our audit opinion.

A membees of MOUWORLDWIDE
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, We alio communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidsed financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matier or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be cxpected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

&) Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020, whose report, dated
March |, 2021, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

B} ther Responsibilities Arising from Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC™} Mo, 6102, the
auditor's report on the early risk identification system and commitiee was submitted to the Company's Board of
Drirectors on 28 February 2022,

Mo matter has come to our attention that & significant according to subparagraph 4 of Articke 402 of Torkish
Commercial Code (“TCC™) No. 6102. The Group's bookkeeping activities concerming the period from | January
o 31 December 2021 period are in compliance with the TCC and provisions of the Group's articles of
association related 1o financial reporting.

In accordance with subparagraph 4 of Article 402 of the TCC, the Board of Directors submitied the necessary
explanations to us and provided the documents required within the context of our audit.

The engagement parmer responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ozcan Aksu.

MGI BAGIMSIZ DENETIM AS.
A Member of MGI WORLDWIDE
R

=
A

OZCAN AKSU
Principal Auditor in Charge
(Istanbul, 28 February 2023)

& mamb=er of MG WORLDWIDE



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORIGINALLY IS5UED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MOUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET A5
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 3 DECEMBER 2021

{Amounts on tables expressed in Turkish Lim (*TL") unless otherwise indicabed. §

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(BALANCE SHEET) (TL)

ASSETS
Curremt Assels
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
Financial Investmenis
Trade Reccivables
=Trade Receivabies fram Related Parties
-Traele Recelvalies from Non Related Parivez
(Mher Recervahbles
-(hher Recefvables from Relmied Porties
= (hher Recetvables from Non Reloied Partics
Drerivative Instuments
Invenlonics
Prepaid Expenses
Current Income Tax Assets
(ibver Currenl Assels
Total
Mom Current Asiels
Fanamcial Investments
Trade Receivables
- Trade Recervables from Related Parties
-Trade Kecetvables from Now Relmed Parries
Other Reccivables
-rher Recelvabies from Relared Parties
{Irher Receivables from Nan Related Parites
Investsments Accounled for Lising the Bquity Method
Investment Propertics
Propery. Plamt and Equipment
Right of Use Assets
Intzngible Assets
= fipotvil!
-k Truragitde Asaet
Deferred Tax Assels
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompasying notes form an mécgral pan of these consohdated finmscial

slalemens

Page:1
Awatired Arnilited
Current Period Previois Feriod
Motes December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
6,858, 701224 3926508175
fa 2005 002284 LMESE2 50
T . -
] 5553845206 2.013.504.733
1037 L H3.073
L] 3353844085 2013820580
i 1565010 1. 504,605
{1-37 - 2
I Lyas ol I 50, 6605
i2 425950650 -
13 QE3 955.474 9. 34553
k] A1 148904 e v W
23 16467 £4.337
.4 13217, 1S40 41,525,277
6838700226 3926808178
115440, 5000 11564967
7 E E
(1] - ‘
Io-37 . =
] = -
11 EEA ] 155941
[-ar - -
I ELE T A
=1t - =
17 S5 T42.57% 0613, TR
1% 29521712 26907 820
] 11.733.677 15186177
19 12668620 17604 569
i | 507 a0 |57 600
e T0.F7m 9 T 5. T, K
35 3734973 24213640
6.952.141.726 40601373142




CORNVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTD ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY

ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET A5,
COMNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

{Amounts on tehbes expeessed In Turkish Lira (“TL") unbess otherwise imlicated, )

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(BALANCE SHEET) {TL) Asdited Audited
Current Pertod Frevious Period
Maoies December 31, 20201 December 31, 2020
LIABILITIES
Current Linhilities SE40AS] 96 JAT4RG4.5TL
Short-Tenm Finencial Linbilities R 1. 120,922 956 53500118
Short Term Portion of Long Term Fmnanciol Lishilsties B . s
(iher Financial Liahilities 9 . -
Trade Payables 10 4.253.217.565 2.292.642.19%
- Trade Puyvables 1o Relared Parites 1037 BEE2E 2582
-Trade Pavables 1o Non Related Puarties 1 4253020737 2192 ARK I5F
Emgployes Benefits Payables 20 1.2500015 QNG |55
(b Payables I 32289843 32451, T4A
~{Wiver Payabies ra Relmed Pariies 133 - -
- (iher Payehies to Non Relared Parties H 32280843 22453 746
Liabilities from Investmenis Accounted for Using the Equiry Method 4-16 - -
Dierivative Instrumenis 2 - 1720631
Deferred Income 15 22553402 102 TIR6TE
Cuarrent Income Tax Liabilities 15 116286 346 e ) |
Shon Term Provisions o 92219937 42410233
= {Ither Skart Term Provizions 22 22937 A2 A0 233
(ither Shom Term Lisbilisies 26 - -
Total S.540,45] 904 3474 84572
Long-Term liabilities 18737277 19878378
Financial lishilities f 6774408 10. 797435
Long Term Provisions for Employes Benefis 4 11962749 8. TROO4H
Dreferred Tax Linhilities 15 - -
EQUITY 1,002,553 458 666,230,195
Equity Holders of the Parent a 48, 166,507 554,005, T62
Faid in Share Capital 224 e (H0e0) 35, 00, (D)
Adjusiment to Share Capital 1.064 323 1.06-.323
Repurchased Shares (-} (4.979.617) {1.705.205)
Slumre Premijumdiscount 156607 156,607
Rusines: Combinationg Under Commaon Costrol (11.913,128) (11913 128)
Criber Comprehensive Income or Expenses nol 1o be Reclassified 1o
Profin or Loss {1.775.0%3) {L11R95T)
« Revalumhiaon ard Remeazwremeni (ioires' Losees (1775 982 fi. 1189573
Dikver Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be Reclassified w Profin
ar Loss 64,843 261 233835
Cwrrengy Translation Differences 84,843 261 23252 577
Restricted Reserves From Retained Earnings 4631570 356700642
Reginined Eamimgs 22T 417678 31313750
et Profin1.oss) 43 03T SRT 143, 345753
Mnﬂ-@mu‘ull'm: inlerest 1) 144,785,978 110861 433
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY G952 141726 A6 AT 142

The accompanying nodes are integral parts ol ibe financial sEements.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH
INDERS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET A5 Page:3

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ANI 2020

{Amounts on lables expressed in Twkish Lira ("TL") unless otherwize indicated. )

PROFIT OR LOSS
AN

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENTS (TL}

Awaeed Awadiresd
Currremd Period Previows Periond
damuary 1, 0021 danuary 1, 2021
Nots  December 31,201 December 31,2000

STATEMENT OF FROFIT OR LOSS
et Sales 28 15090576 863 I 2350200022
Cost of sales-) 25 (12.525.819.774) (h569.318.232)
GROSS PROFITHLOSS) FROM FINANCIAL
OPERATIONS 565, TS 7089 JH3. 0. TH
GROSS PROFITHLOSS) S65. 757089 A5 T 790
Gieneral Admmistralive Expenses (=} 9 (903089372 (T8 284 58%)
Marketing, Sales and [Mstnbution Expenses (-} 9 (65,374 A06) (33.883.976)
(kher Operating Ineome il 6T7.359. T 289857, 15%
{kher Operating Expenses {-) 31 (S1B.440.023) (200,776, 277H
OFERATION PROFIT / (LDSS) S&T.90L.178 Jd5.612.011
Income from [nvestment Activities 32 1034 408 50,488
Expenses (roam [nvestment Activitles {-) 32 - -
% hare of ProfitLoss of Investmeniz Accounted For Llsang the
Equity Method iz - {1.254.086)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCIAL
INCOMENEXPENSE) SR0026.586 M4 368513
Financial Income i3 319845807 DA TG0GEH
Financial Expenses (-] 33 (236,908, 113) (213.324.7646)
PROFITHLOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIDNS 631964, 2840 125119813
Tax Incomed Expense), Continuiing Dperations 19945497 58,61 T.504)

= Tax Income {Expense) 33 {166, T14. 75 {59,381 _544)

= Deferred Tax Incomse / {Expense) 15 (2230717} Th4 238
PROFIT{LOSS5) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 457,008,788 166, 802,508
NET FROFIT|LOSS) 43T 018 TR 166, 302,505
Frofit (loss), atiributable to 437018783 166302505
Mon-Controlling Intenests A3580.206 25,156,752
Equity Holders of the Parem ANZ.03T7 567 143,345 753
Earnings Per Share 6 1.7#275 (633
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME|LOSS) 40,873,988 T4, Y
Items not to be reclassified 1o profitloss (T16,696) 69, 1454
AMctuesrial GainLoss Arising From Defined Benefis Plans (7 h6.6%) GO
Ttemis to be reclassified to profitfess 41550684 TATS.539
Currency transtation differences & 5% 584 TET5.53%
Comprehensive Income/Expenses Attribtable to 4TTRILTTI 174447408
Non-Contralling Interests 33521545 23,1 B6h%0
Eqguity Holders of the Parent 443.971.226 151.310.712

The accompanying noles are mbegral parts of the financial ststements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATHIN INTO ENGLESH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY IBSUED N TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS. Page:5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 3821 AND 2030
WA mernis o febies gxpresscd fn Turkisl Eiva ¢ TL ) unless ovbrrwize fndicated
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (TIL) Aarafited Amalires
Naies January 1, ki Junumry 1, 3030
; Diecember 31, 2021 Decemeber 31, 2030
A)TCASH FLOWS FROM OPFERATING ACTIVITIES 46,118,551 042034 4587
ProfitLoss for the Period 437018,THA Ui, S07. 505
Adjmstments to Reconcile Profit (Loss) 3%1,587.978 15630248
Adpastments e deprecmalios and exelinalion ¢3penss 17-18-1% 17,555,134 15278274
Adjustments for lmpabrmical Léss (Beversal of Impairment Loss) 16,745,074 FETHA4T
Adasiments B receivables impairment {reversal b (L1} g 415 409 G
Adusiments For imveniory impaimment {reversal) [E 8329578 ETTI 349
Adjustmenis For property. plant and equipmsnl mapasment (reversal) 17-18-1% - -
Adjustments for provisions L3387 166 {1867 5.050)
Adustmeents for provisions for empbovee benefits (reversal) M 3517462 1385 895
Adjustisenits for peovissoes for lmwnes md penstics 2 (B EETY {120 845
Adjustmsenis for offer provasiond (reversal) 12 45 8400 3593 (20003 ] 4809
Addjustments for interest income'ex pense 176601 AL
Adjustments for imeres inedame 31-33 {1 73.2R8. 176, L8023 641
Adjustments for imornesd oxpenses A1-33 00 YIL 9T 103422 66T
Difeired Finasstal Experss from Temn Purchasss L1 (4.151.957) {391.732)
Unrealised Fmancial Income from Term Sales ] LETE TR X IE L]
Adjusiments for tax neome'el pense 1 (LR LR L SH.617 308
Chther sdjustments to reconcile profit fer the period % (S5.651.913) (B.293.685)
Changes in Workisg Caplexl (71667 549) 34707573
Adjstments for Gaina'l osses m Trade Recervables (1) 11553230147 (T 653 105)
Adpsamenss for GaimsTosses In Other Reocivables Related To Operations i {0, A1) 25,072 832
CrainaLosses from Invesaonics 13 (4ET 939 52L) 48438751
Adgasiments for losses ' pains) in Trade Payables 1 1.964,727.127 BU8. 444 726
Adpasiments Bor GamsTosses In Othor Payables Related To Operatoss L1 | Bl S0 i L%
Cazh Flows From {1Used i) Operations T8, 9400 ARG 5ML116
Employee Torminaton Benela Paid H (1230 453y (11ET 63Ty
Income Taxes Refund (peid) 35 (68530 055) (47.221.642)
Cher inflows {outfloms) of Cmh G065 980 ZREAS DL
B CASH FLOAWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES SRS {102,559, 474y
Cash Inflows From Acquisition af Cther Esities, Funds and Debi Enstrumeses : (65 105,754}
Cash inflows [rom sabe of property, plant and equipment and ntangihle asseo 15-1% 173730 JRTA00
Cosh inflows from sale of property, plani and equipment 173730 45 555
Cash inflows from sale of intangible mssen - Iaga
Cash sutflons from parchass of property, plant asd equipmest and inlangible asseis 1819 (5. 3G2.201) [LN T L T
Cazh oulflows from purshase ol property, planl and squipeseni N (5,170 846) (2.320.347)
Cash ouiflows from purchase of intangible awets 1" L1B5.735) {16 42% 165
Cash inflows from purchase of imvesiment propertics 17 LA0ETE .
Cash sutflews from purchase of investment properties 7 (6 A6 2520 18646425
CHUASH FLEIWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES R RTES 186, 138021
Cash inflows from borrowings ] 1 468 557 T4 1.309,09,284
Cash miloves from koans & | 46E 55T 742 1, A0 (¥ 204
sk outflows fram repavments of borrowisgs 3 (I2EIITRATL) (DA AL AL
¢ sl catfloms froen loan repayments i (L3370 {9 3 4
Cody oostiloos from payments of lease liabilitics & (5858 524 (T.BA1.425)
Devidenls paid 45 55 500 (22990 &k}
Inberest paid 3213 (D 1& 204 58T (X261 910)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES O CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TTROIH.621 LSRR A0d
NET INCREASEADECHEASE) 1% CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TILOIEG2] LAEATI A0
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINMMNG OF THE PERMD [ 1318 306 627 RO 1RG22
CASH AKD CASH BEQUIVALENTS AT THE ENI? OF THE PERIOD L 10643338 248 1308 209 627

The nccompasyang sobes form an micgral part of thess cosmolidated finmcial stalements




CONVESIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
(A wvomints are expreazed in (' TL %) unkess otherwise idiosded. )

NOTE | GROUPMS ORGANISATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Indeks Bilgisavar Sistemleri Mihendislik Sanavi ve Ticaret A.S. (“the Company™) was established on 1989 in Turkey.
Indcks Bilgisayvar’s business activities include operating in the 1T sector and distributing [T products with the mission of
distributing worldwide brands from Turkey and abroad. Indeks Bilgisavar i3 subject 1o Capital Markets Board ("CMB™) and
its 15,34% shares have been guoted on the Borsa Istanbal (“BIST™) zince September 2004, The listed shares of Indeks
Bilgisayar have beéen traded on the Borsa Istanbul ("BIST™) "STAR"” equity market.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes of the Company and its Subsidiaries 1ogether referred
as the “Group™.

As of 31 Decermber 2021 amd 2020, the subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope of Indeks s as follows:

Direct Imdlirect
Subsidiaries Mature of Business Capital H!T:E;Eh m?:;?:;sh
b e
[ratagate Bilgisavar
Malzemelen A5 Telecommunicalion TL 30.(eb.000 924 5924
i Datagate )
Teklos Teknoloji Lojistik e F :
Hizmetleri A.$. (Teklos) Logistics Services and Leasing TL 5.0, 000 99,90 9999
Indeks International FZE | Computer components and UAE Dirham 100,00 100,00
Indeks FZE) accessories purchasing — selling 130,000 ' :
nfin Bilgsayar Ticaret Computer components and TL 50,000 94 &0 99 &0
| AS, accessories purchasing — selling ' ’ :
Neotech Teknolojik Electrical home appliances
Uriinler Dag. A5 purchasing — selling (non T 10U, (e B0 B,
(Neatech) operating )
= . | Metwork and communication
Neteks Teknoloji Criinberi
AS. (Neteks Tek.)N*) pmductr. and spare parts TL 28,4100 1003, 100,00
purchasing — selling
Despec Bilgisavar \
Pazarlama ve Ticaret st TL 23.000.000 4 29,11
AGDespec) (**)

{*)On 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership intercst rate has changed following the acquisition of
50,00% shares from Meteks [letisim Urinleri Dagitm A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Uriinberi A5 and effective ownership
interest rate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of 31 December 2019 and
2018, the financial satements of MNeteks lletgim Ortnleri Dagiom A5, and Meteks Teknoloji Uriinleri A.5 have been
sccounted for using the equity method. On 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership intercst rate has
changed following the acquisition of 50,00% shares from Neteks letisim Urilnleri Dagitm A$. and Neteks Teknoloji
Uriinleri A5 and effective ownership interest rate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition af share
purchase, As of | March 2020, the financial statements of Neteks lletisim UrGinleri Dagmim A S, and Neteks Teknoloji
Uriinleri A.% have been accounted for using the full consolidation method. In accordance with the registration on 2.11.2020,
our 100% subsidiaries of Neteks lletisim Uriinleri Dagrom A.S. and Artim Bilisim Coziimleri A5, have been controlled by
the following acquisition of Neteks Teknoloji Orilnleri Anonim Sirketi, our 100% subsidiary, and the following acquisition
have been made through share transfer in accordance with the article numbered 134 and related anicles of the Turkish
Commercial Code and the articles numbered 18, 19 and 20 of the Corporate Tax Law No. 5520

{**) Om 12 March 2020, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate Bilgizayar Malzemeleri A.§ was acquired Despec Bilgisayar
Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.5"s 49,13% of shares from related paries Desbil Teknolojik Urriinber A.S.. M. Erol Bilecik and other
sharcholders. As of the beginning of the reporting period. in which joint control is established, financial statements were
restated retrospectively as business combination and change of control realized. The financial statements of Despec Bilgisayar
Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.5 have been accounted for using thie full consolidation method,

[




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET A5

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{ A vomernis re expressed in (T ") unless otherwise indicaded )

As of 31 December 2020, the financial statements of Datagate Bilgisayar Malzemeled A%, Teklos Teknoloji Lojistik
Hizmetleri A.5., Indeks International FZE, Infin Bilgisavar Ticaret A.$., Neotech Teknolojik Uronler Dag. A.S., Neteks
Teknoloji Urlinleri A.§ and Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Ticaret A § have been accounted for using the full consolidation
method.

The principal shareholder of the Group is Mevres Erol Bilecik (36,37%%). Tolal end of period and average number of personnel
emploved by the Group is 462, (2020: 470)

The registered address of Indeks Bilgisavar is as follows:

Ayazagn Mah. Mimar Sinan S0k Moc 21 Seba Office Boulevard D Blok kat:] Bilom No: 1] PE: 34485 Sﬂ.l'l}'ﬂ"'tﬂ'rﬁﬁﬂl.ﬂ...
The head office of the Group is in Istanbal and it has branches in Ankara and Crivarbakr, The warchouse activities of the Group
operated by Teklos Teknoloji Lojistik Hizmetleri A§. which is included inthe scope of consolidation ai the registered address
of Cumhurivet Mahallesi Yahyakaptan Caddesi No: 10A D:2 Cayirova / KOCAELL

MOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201 Basis of Presentation

Indeks Bilgisayar Sistemleri Mahendislik Sanayi ve Ticaret A.5. maintains their books of account and prepares their stamutory
consolidated financial statements in Turkish Lira in accordance with the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC™), tax legislation
and the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Ministry of Finance. The accompanying consolidated financial stalements
have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Capital Markets Board (“CMB™) Communigué No: [1-14.1-
“Communiqué on Principles of Financial Reporting i Capital Markets” (*Communiqué”) in the Official Gazette numbered
28676 dated June 13, 2013 reference to Article 5 of the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Board (“POA™)
that have been put into force by Turkey Accounting Standards and interpretations related to these additional (“TAS") are
considered.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were published by POA with the decision numbered 30 on June 2, 2016,
and it was presented in accordance with the *Announcement regarding to TAS Taxonomy™, or “TFRS 2019™ which was
published on April 13, 2019,

The accompanying consolidated fnancial staements of the Group are presented in accordance with the Group™s statuiory
records and are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency™ ). The consolidated Nnancial statements are presented in TL, which is Indeks Bilgsayar's functional and
presentation currency. (As of 31 December 2020, 2019 and 2018, the non monetary items included in the consolidated
financial statements are presented in US Dollars until 30 Jane 2003 In accordance with the Turkey Financial Reporting
Standards published by the POA, to be able o presentation of the Group's financial position and performance, the
consolidaied financial statements have been prepared and subjected o necessary adjustments and restatements. The
functional currency of Indeks International FZE and Neteks Teknolofi AS are “USD",

The Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements with the assumption on the Group’s ability to confinue its
operations in the foreseecable future as o going concern.

These consolidated financial statements a3 of and for the vear ended 31 December 2021 have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors (“BOD™) on | March 2021. These financial statements will be finalised following their approval in the
General Assembly

2.02 Dealing with the Inflation Effects in Hyper-Infationary Perlods

Before the related legislation of Turkish Commercial Code no, 6102 and the Decree Law no. §60, Capital Markets Board
(“CMBE™), a decision which was taken on 17 March 2005, companies opernting in Turkey and for companies that prepare
consalidated financial satements in accordance with CMB Accounting Standards, it is not necessary the inflation accounting
application, to be effective from January 1, 2005 as announced, as of this date Turkey Accounting Standard 29 “Financial
Reporting in Hyper inflationary Economies” practice of preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements
has ended.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{Amoamis are expressed | i TL 7 unleis atherwiae oidivatad )

2.03 Basis of Consolidation

Subsidinries 5 company over which Indeks has the power o control the financial and operating policies for the benefit of
Indeks, either {a) through the power 1o exercise more than 50% of voding rights relating to the shares m the companies as a
result of the ownership interest owned directly and indirectly by itself, and/or by certain Indeks members and companies
owned by them where by Indeks exercises control over the ownership inberest of the shares held by them and shares to be
used according to Indeks preferences; or (b) although not having the power 1o exercize more than 3% of the ownership
interest, Indeks has power 10 control the investee due to the dispersed capital strucnire of the investes and/or Indeks has rights
or is exposed to variable retums from its involvement with the investee and when at the same fime it has the power to affiect
these returns through its power over the investee.

The balanee sheets and income siatements of the Subsidiaries are consolidated on a line-by-line basiz and the carrving value
of the investment held by Indeks and its Subsidinries is eliminated againgt the related equiry. Intercompany transactions and
balaneces between Indeks and its Subsidiaries are eliminated during the consolidation. The nominal amount of the shares held
by Indeks in its Subsidiaries dividends are eliminated from equity and income for the period, respectively.

Non controlling interests include the share option under non controlling interest in the subsidiaries” net assets and operating
resulis for the period The amounts are presented scparately from the consolidated balance sheet and statement of income.
The obligation of non controlling interest exceeds more than the non controlling interest belonging to the inerests of
subsidiary, if the non controlling interest has no binding obligations, the benefits of non controlling interest may result against
the interests of the majority.

As of 31 December 2021, the subsidiaries included in the consolidation scope of Indeks i as follows:

[¥irect Indirect
Subsidiaries Nature of Business Capital n";;?:;ﬂ"'“ “2:;;?:'1':“
o %

Datagate Bilgisayvar
Malzemeleri A5, Telecommunication TL 30,000,000 50,24 5924
(Datagate )
Teklos Teknoloji Lojistik = " .
Hizmetleri A.S. (Teklos) Logistics Services and Leasing TL .00 e Q5 G LR
Indeks International FZE | Computer components and UAE E’m 00,00 100,00
(Indeks FLE) accessories purchasing — selling ) : d
Infin Bilgisavar Ticaret Computer components and

ﬂ-. i ; Nk ““l"'ﬂ TL: 500D G B0 B B0
Meatech Teknolojik Electrical home appliances
Uriinler Dag. AS. purchasing - selling (non TL 1000 (0 80,00 &0, 00
(Meotech) operafing )

" .| Wetwork and communication
R‘ﬁ;:ﬁ;“;“iﬂﬁ“'m products and spare parts TL 28.410.000 100,00 106,00
i purchasing — selling

Despec Bilgisayar ;
Pazarlama ve Ticaret ﬁﬂ::':r Electronics and TL 23,000,000 2 29,11
A5 (Despec)(**}

{*10n 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar’s effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of
50,00% shares from Meteks lletisim Oriinleri Dagitim A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Urilnleri A§ and effective ownership
interest pate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. On 28 February 2020, Indeks
Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of 50,00% shares from Neteks lletigim
('rinleri Dagmim A S. and Meteks Teknoboji Urlinleri A.S and effective ownership interest rate increased from 50,00% to
1005 with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of 1 March 2020, the financial statements of Neteks lletisim
Crinleri Dagtim A.S. and Meteks Teknoloji Uriinleri A.$ have been accounted for using the full consolidation method., In
accordance with the registration on 2.11.2020, our 100% subsidiaries of Meteks [letisim Urinleri Dagitim A.$. and Arim
Bilisim Coziimleri A.$, have been controlled by the following acquisition of Neteks Teknoloji Orilnleri Anonim $irkett, our
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NMOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{ed oty e expressed i ¢ T ") aledd ot ruciss dmdicated §

100%: subsidiary, and the following scquisition have been made through share transfer in accordance with the amicle
numbered 134 and related articles of the Turkish Commercial Code and the articles numbered 18, 19 and 20 of the Corporate
Tax Lanw MNo. 5520,

(**) Om 12 March 2020, the subsidiary of the Group. Datagate Bilgisavar Malzemeleri A.§ was acquired Despec Bilgisayar
Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.5's 49,13% of shares from related parties Desbil Teknolojik Uriinler A.%., N, Erol Bilecik and other
shareholders. Az of the beginning of the reporting period i which joint control is established, financial siatements were
restated refrospectively as business combination and change of controd realized. The financial ststements of Despec Bilgisayar
Pazarlama ve Ticaret A5 have been accounted for using the full consolidation method,

As of 31 December 2021, the financial statements of Datagate Bilgisayar Malzemeleri A.S., Teklos Teknoloji Lojistik
Hizmetleri A.S., Indeks International FZE, Infin Bilgisayar Ticaret A.%.. Neotech Teknolojik Oriinler Dag. A5 Neteks
Teknoloji Urtinleri A_S and Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.S have been accounted for using the full consolidation
method.

Joing Arrangements and sharing of contrel: A joint arrangement whereby parties that kave joint control of the armangement
have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities relating to the armangement. The contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimouws consent of
the parties sharing coniral.

[mvestments in associaties and joint veniures are initially accounted for under equity method and recognized at cost. Under
the equity method, the investment in o joint venture is initially recognised at cost in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of profit or loss of the investiee
after the date of the acquisition. The investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is recognised in the investor's profit
or lass.

In applying the equity method, the Group should use the financial statements of the associate or joint venture as of the same
date s the finamcial statements of the investor or joint venturer unless it is mpracticable to do o, IT 1 is impracticable, the
mst recent available consolidated fimancial statements of the associate or jpoint venture should be used, with adjustments
made for the effects of any significant transactions oF events occurring between the accounting period ends, However, the
difference between the reporting date of the associate and that of the investor cannot be longer than three months.

On acquisition, any difference between the coat of the investment and the entity”s share of the net fair value of the invesiee’s
identifiable assets and liabilities in case of goodwill is included in the camving amount of the invéstment (amOrtisalion mot
permitted ) and any excess of the entity's share of the net fair value of the investee's identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment is included as income in the determination of the entity’s share of the associate or joint venture's profit
of koss in the period in which the investmient is acquired. Adjustments to the entity’s share of the associate’s or joint veniure's
profit or loss after scquisition are made, for example, for depreciation of the depreciable assets based on their fair values at
the acquisition date or for impaimment losses such as for goodwill or property, plant and equipment.

The balance sheets and financial statements of the subsidianes are sccounted for using the full consolidated method and the
carrying values held by Indeks and its Subsidiaries i offset from the related equity respectively.,

Intercompany transactions and balances between Indeks and its Subsidiaries are eliminated during the conselidation.

Mon controlling interests include the share option under non controlling interest in the subsidiaries’ net assets and operating
results for the period. The amounts are presented separately from the balance sheet and statement of income. The obligation
of non controlling interest exceeds more than the non controlling interest belonging 1o the interests of subsidiary, if the non
controlling interest has no binding obligations, the benefits of non controlling interest may résult against the interests of the

MAROTILY,




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{Amonsrs ane expredsed in ¢ T1L ") ualesn sdharwise indicoted )

Business Combinations Under Common Control- Acquisition Method of Entity

In accordance with the investment and growth plans, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate’s effective ownership interest rane has
changed following the scquisition of 49,13% of Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Ticaret A5 of 1 1.300.994 number of shares,
Dieshil Teknolojik Oriinler A5, N. Erol Bilecik and other shareholders shares purchased at the unit amount of TL 4,67 total
TL 52.775.640 on 12 March 2020

The share purchase transaction is accounted for “Business combination under common control™, In accordance with the
“Turkish Accounting Standards application™ 2018-1 published by POA, the pooling of interest methed is applied, whils the
consolidated financial statements will be corrected as and the business combination was realized as of the | January 200 in
which the joint control was formed and presented comparatively from the beginning of the reporting peried when the joint
control was established and indicated stated that in order to eliminate the possible asset-liability mismatch that may occur
due 1o the business combination subject to joint control, the “Business Combinations Under Commeon Control™ will be wtilised
a3 to be offset under equity.

The 4000 number shares within total number of 11.300.994 shares are Class A shares and remaining shares are Class B
shares. Datagate Bilgisavar Malzemeleri Ticaret A.S has also acquired the 4.000 Class A shares of Despec Bilgisayar ve
Porarlama Malzemeleri A5, Class A shares have concession on the election of Board of Direciors, Board of Directors of
Deespec Bilgisayar ve Pazarlama Malzemeleri A.$ is selected from 4 members in case of § or 6 members, 5 members in case

of 7 or & members, & members in case of 9 members from amoeng the candidates nominated by the Class A sharcholders of
the Group.

The balance sheet and income datement of the Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Tworet A5 'nin have been accounted for
using the full concolidation method and and the carrying values of the Subsidiary is offset from the related equity respectively.
In addition, intercompany transactions and balances between Indeks and its Subsidiaries are eliminated during the
consolidation.

Drirect Indirect
Subsidiaries Maiure of Business Capital Ownership Held | Ownership Held
by Indeks % by Indeks %%
Despec Bilgisayar Pazarfama | Consumer Electronics and 5 B
ve Ticaret A5 Tel TL 23,0000 % 29,11

2.04 Comparatives and Adjustment of Prior Period Financial Statements

The current period consolidated financial statements of the Group include comparative financial information to enable the
determination of the trends in financial position and performance. Comparative figures are reclassified, where necessary, to
conform to the changes in the presentation of the current period consolidated financial statemients. The effects of restated
financial staterments in scope of *Business Combination under Common Control” ane inchuded in Note 2.03. The Group has
no adjustments and comected amounts compare to prior period except for Note 2,03,

205 OMfsetting

Financial asscts and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reponed in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneoushy.

206 Changes in Accounting Policics

Whether there are changes and errors in accounting policies and accounting estimates, the amended significant changes and
the identified significant accounting errors are implemented retrospectively and the previous periods Group's consolidated
financial statements are adjusted. Whether the changes are amended in accounting policies effect the previous periods,
aforementioned policy is implemented retrospectively to the consolidated financial statements as it had been used in,

2.07 Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Accounting estimates are based on reliable information and reasonable estimation methods. However, estimates are revised
as & result of changes in circumstances, estimating new information or additional developments. IT changes in accounting
forecasts are related 1o only one period, amendments are made in the current period. If amendments a to the
forthcoming periods, changes are applied in both current period and forthcoming periods.
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The nature and amount of a change in the sceounting estimate, which has an impact on the outcome of the current peried or
is expected 1o have an impact on subsequent periods, is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial satements, except
wien the estimation of the effect on the future penods 15 not possible.

The Group management uses the actuarial assumptions used in the caleulation of useful lives of property, plant and equipment
amd intangible assets, the actuarial assumptions used m the calculation of employment termination benefits, the provisions to
be allocated for the lawsuits and execution proceedings in favor of or against the Group, and the determination of the
inventory impainment, Explanations on the estimates used are included in the related nofes is as follows.

TAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™ outlines how to account for foreign currency transactions and
operations in consolidated financial statements, and also how to translate consolidated financial statements into a presentation
curmency. The Group Management determines the presentation currency that most affects the sales of goods and services, the
currency in which the labor expenses are realized, the currency of the cash generated from the financing activities, and taking
into account the expected future changes in these factors. The Group Management reviews the accounting estimates regarding
the functional currency and the policies applied in each balance sheet date.

208 Summary of Significant Accounling Policies
Accounting policies used in the preparstion of consolidated financial statements are summarised below:
208.01 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the amount of ingome can be determined reliably and it is probable that there will be an miflow
of econpmical benefits concemning the ransactions to the Group o it is accrued over the fair value of the receivable amount.
Revenus 15 accounted For in the consolidated financial statements in sccordance with TFRS 15 within the scope of the five-
stage model below.

Identification of customer contracts,

ldentification of performance obligations,

Determination of the transaction price in the contracts,

Allocation of rransaction price 1o the performance obligations,
Recognition of revenue when the performance obligations are satisfied.

»  The Group's sales mclede the brands such as Apple, HP, IBM, Canon, Lenovo, Oppo and Samsung,

Almost all of the products sold by the Group are of foreign origin. A portion of foreign purchases of some foreign companies
or the companies from resident companies in Turkey are performed operations which are resident companies in Turkey.
Depending on the realization of the targets given by the domestic or foreign companies, some cosis are taken under the name
of “rebate”, “ristum”, “sell our* and “honus™ or deducted from current accounts, These values are recognized as credit note
income accrual on the balance sheet asset by providing the rgets or conditions given by the scller companies. These prices
are deducted or collected from the current account with the documents issued by the vendors under “rebate™, “vistum®, “sell
out” and “bonus” and “credit node™ within amanged documents {or inviedoes Baued by the Group), The “credit notes™ obiained
regarding for inventories are deducted from cost of inventories. The portion of the balance is recognized in “Other Sales™
under sales.

Interest income i5 accrued in the relevant period in proportion to the remaining principal balance and the effective inferest
rate that reduces the estimated cash inflows from the related financial assat to the book value of that asset.

If there is a significant financing element in sales, the fair value is determined by reducing the future cash flows with the
hidden interest rate recognized in the consolidated financial stmements. The difference is reflected in the consolidated
financial statements on accrual basis,

20802 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of eost or net realisable value. The Growp's inventories include PC, motebooks,
telecommunication and networking products, computer components and mobile phones, The cost of inventories is caleulated
by FIFO method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of
completion and selling expenses.
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L0803 Property, plant and equipment and related deprecintion

Property, plant and equipments are carried at cost less accomulated depreciation as of December 31, 2004 Tor the itams

purchased before 01 January 2005 and for the ftems purchased as of January 1, 2003, less the accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The

gﬂ:ﬁnc'utlm periods for property, plant and equipment, which approximate the economic useful lives of such assets, are as
DS

 Type December 31, 2021 &tr {%a) December 31, 2020 Rate (%)
Buildings 2 z
Melachi and Equipment I0-25 10-25
Motor Viehicles 10-25 1025
Fumniture and Fixtures 10=33 10-33
Leasehold Improvements 10-33 10-33

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed fo have an indefinite useful life.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the asset’s net selling price or value in use. Provision for
impairment has ol been calculated for property, plam and equipment.

Gains or kosses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with their net carmving
amounis and are classified under “gains/losses from investing activities™ in the current period.

Repairs and maintemance expenses are charged to the income statements during the period in which they are incurred.
Machinery and equipment are capitalised and amortised when their capacity is fully available for use.

2,08, Intangible assets and related amortsation

Intangible assets comprise assets acquired through computer programs and rights and art masterpieces. There is no intangible
assel that is formed within the structure of the Group,

Intangible assets acquired before | January, 2005 are carmied of acquisition costs adjusted for inflation; whereas those
purchased in and purchased after 2005 are carried forward at their acquisition ¢ost less accumulated amortization.

They are initially recognised at acquisition cost and amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated usefil lives for 3-
I5 wyears. Art maslerpicces are not depreciated as it i deemed to have an unestimated wseful life and nol sibject to
amorization.

Intangible assers are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date. If the carrying amount of an intangible asset exceeds
s essimated recoverable amount, the carrying amownt is reduced 1o its recoverable amount. There is no provision for
impairment on intangible assets.

20805 Impairment of Assets

Assets with an ivdefinite useful life, such as goodwill, are not subject (o amortization. An impairment test i3 applied 1o these
assels each year, For assets subject 1o amortization, impairment test is applied if the book value cannot be recovered. An
impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 10 sell or value in use, For the purposes of assessing

impainment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Mon-financial assets
excepl goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date,
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In accordance with the assesment by Group management as of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group mansgement
determined that impairment is not recognized on Investment Properties, Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.
The estimated market values of these assels are considersd 10 above their camrying values, Other assels comprise oF Folor
vehicles and furniture and fixtues used for administrative purposes. The insurance coverage and replacement costs of these
assets are above their carmrying values.

2.08.06 Research and Development Costs
INome.
20807 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifving asset, one that
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sabe, are capitalised as pant of the cost of that asset in the
period in which the asset is prepared for its intended use or sale, Borrowing costs that are nod in this scope are recognised
directly in the income statement. All other borowing costs are recognized in profit or boss in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs include interest expenses and all other borrowing costs. The Group does not have capitalized
financing costs during the peniod.

20808 Fimancial Instruments
i Fimanctal Assets-Classificarion arnd Meansiremen

A financial asset is recognized for the first time in its consolidated Minancial statements:;

a) Financial instruments measured a1 amoniised cost

b} Debt instruments at fair vabuwe (“FV™) through other comprehensive income;
¢l Equity instruments ot fair value ("FV™) through other comprehensive income
d} Financial instraments at fair value (“FY™) through profit or loss

For financial assets, reclassification is required between FVTPL, FVTOCI and amortised cost, if and only if the entity’s
business model objective for its financial assets changes so its previous model assessment would no longer apply. IF
reclassification is appropriate, it must be done prospectively from the reclassification date which is defined as the first day
of the reporting period following the change in business model.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions must be measured at FVTOCT unless the asset is designated at
FVTPL under the fair value option.

Business model test: The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

Cash Now characteristles: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt imstrument at FY through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met and the FV is not
classified as measured by the difference in profit or loss:

= The retention of the Mnancial asset based on a business model aimied at collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assels;

- The contractual terms of the financial asset lead to cash flows that include interest payments on principal and principal
balance on certan dates.

All financial assets that are not measured by the above mentioned amortised cost or measured at FV through other
comprehensive income are measured at FV through profit or loss. These include all derivative financial assets. In the event
that financial assets are recognized for the first time in their consolidated financial statements; an irreversible amount of a
financial asset is mensured ot fair value through profit or loss provided that it eliminates or substantially reduces an accounting
mismatch arising from the different measurement of financial assets and the gain or loss related to them in the consolidated
financial statem-nts, F
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In the first measurement of the financial assets other than the fair value changes that are reflected to the profit or loss (except
for the trade receivables that are measured &t the transaction cost and not having an imporiant financing component at the
time of the consolidated financial statements), the transaction costs directly attributable o the acquisition or issuance thereol
are also added to the fair value.

i, fmpairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with TFRS 9, "Expected Credit Loss™ model is applied. The new impairmvent model applies to financial msets
and contractual assets measured a2 amortized cost but is not applied to investments on equity instruments.

Financial asscts measured at amortized cost consist of trade receivables, other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The provisions for trade receivables, other receivables, other assets and contractual assets are always measured at an amount
equal to the expected credit losses for life.

When determining whether the credit risk in a financial asset has increased substantially since its adoption in the consolidated
financial statements and the expecied credit losses are estimated, reasonable and supporable information that can be obtained
withiout incurring excessive costs or efforts is 1aken into consideration. These include qualitative and quantitative information
and analyzes and forward-looking information based on the Group's past experience and informed credit evaluations.

Credit-tmpaired financial asser

The Giroup assesses whether the financial assels measured al amortized cost are diminished in each reporting period. Under
TFRS 9 a financial asset is credit-impaired when one or mone events that have occurred and have a significant impact on the
expected future cash flow of the financial asset. It includes observable data that has come to the attention of the helder of a
financial asset about following events:

- significant finoncial diffuculty of the issuer or borrower,

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past-due event;

- the lenders for economic or contraciual reasons relating to the bormower’s financial diffuculty granted the borrower a
concession that would not otherwise be considered;

= il becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankrupicy of other financial reorganisation; or

- the disapperance of an active market for the financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Pregentation

In the case of a financial nsset that is not purchazed or originated credit-impaired financial asset and for which there is no
objective evidence of impainment at the reporting date. interest revenue is calculsted by applying the effective interest rate
methed to the gross camying amount.

Derecognition

If there is no reasonable expectation 10 recover a cash flow higher than the financial asser, the gross amount of the financial
asset is deducted from the records, This is generally the case when the Group determines that the borrower does not have
sufficient sources of income of assets that can repay the amounts subject to the reversal. However, the financial assets that
are derecognized may still be subject o sanction activities applied by the Group for the recovery of past due receivables.

Financial assets are deducted from the records if there is no expectation of recovery (such as the debtor docs not make any
repayment plans with the Groap). The Group continues 1o exercise sanctions in order to recover the receivables of trade
receivables, other receivables, other assets and contract assets, The recovery amounts are recognized in consolidated
stalement of mcorme.
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2.08.09 Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated inte Turkish Lira using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated imto Turkish Lira using the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, Foreign exchange gains and bosses resulting from trading activities (irade receivables
and pavables} denominated in Foreign currencics of the Group companies operating in the non-finance séctors, have been
accounted for under “other operating income/expenses” whereas foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
translation of other monctary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currencies have been accounted for under “financial
mcomefexpenses” in the consolidated income staterent. The Group sells goods in terms of foreign currency denominated
purchases goods. Therefore, the Group has no currency risk during the period.

108.10 Earnings Per Share

Eamings per share disclosed in the consolidated income statement age determined by dividing net income attributable to
equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period concerned.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital through a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares™) 10 existing
shareholders from retained eamings and inflation adjustment 1o equity. For the purpose of eamings per share computations,
the weighted average number of shares in existence during the period has been adjusted in respect of bonus share issues
without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them retroactive effiect for the period in which they were issued and
each earlier period as if the event had occurred at the beginning of the earliest period reported.

2.08.11 Events After the Balanee Sheet Daie

Subsequent events cover all events that occur between the balance sheet date and the publication date of the consolidated
financial statements. The Group adjusts the amounts recognised in its consolidated financial statements to reflect the adjusting
events after the balance sheet date. If non-adjusting events afier the balance sheet dote have material influence on the
economic decisions of users of the consolidated financial statements, they are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

208.12 Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an cutflow of resources will be required 1o setile the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of provision shall be the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required fo settle the obligation. The discount rate reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The discount rate shall be a pre-tax rate and shall not reflect risks for which
future cash flow estimsies hove been adjusted.

Possible assets or obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Group are not included in the
consolidated financial statements and treated as contingent assets or lubilities.

2.08.13 Leases

Croup - s @ lessee

Finance Leases

A lease is classified ps finance bease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incident to ownership, An entity
kssesses the classification of each clement as finance or an operating lease separately. At commencement of the lease term,
finance leases should be recorded as an asset and liability at the lower of the fair value of the asset and the present value of

the minimum lease payments (discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease, if practicable. or else entity’s incremental
borrowing rate)

Finance lease payments should be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability {the
finance charge to be allocated 5o as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining Iﬂ?ﬁf iability. )
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For operating leases, the lease payments should be recognized as an expense in the income statement over the lease term on
a straighi-line basis effective from 1 January 2019, Incentives for the agreement of a new agreement of a new or renewed
operating bease should be recognized by the lessee as a reduction of the rental expense over the lease term.

TFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and applies 1o annual reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2019, TFRS 16
stapdard, in the liabilities of the “Lease Liabili™ smount calculated as the present value of the lease payments to be mades
during the lease term for the lease agreements with a maturity of more than 12 months and “Right of Use Assets™ (Mote 18)
requires an amount equal 1o the lease liabilities to be recognized in the assets of financial position statement. The amount
recognized as “Right of Use Assets™ is subject 10 depreciation according to the agreement period.

Al inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the coniract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, o contains, a leasc
il the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group reflects a right of use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated financial statements at the date when the lease
term actually begins.

Right-of-use asset Group - as a lessee

Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement date of the lease following the consideration
of the above mentioned factors.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset af cost. The cost of the right-of-use assel comprises;

a) The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
b} Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives reccived,
¢} Any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, and

When applying the cost model, Group measures the right-of-use asset at cosi:

) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated mpairment losses; and
b) Adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Group applies the depreciation requirements in TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Standard in depreciating the right-of-
e assel,

Lease linhility

Al the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease paymients that are not paid
al that date. The lease payments are discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined, or by using the Group's incremental borrowing rate,

The lease pavments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right o use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid af the commencement date:

i) Increasing the carrving amount 1o reflect interest on the lease liability,

b} Reducing the camrying amount to reflect the lease paymends made, and

¢) Remeasuring the carrving amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications. The Group recognises the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment o the rght-of-use asset,

The interest on the lease liabilities for ench perved in the bease term is the amount found by applying a fixed periodic interast
rake 1o the remaining balance of the lease liabilities. The periodic interest rate, if easily determined, s the implied interest
rate on the lease. If this rate cannot be easily determined, the Group uses the Group's incremental borrowing interest rate.

Within the framework of the transition provisions in TFRS 16, no adjustments were made in the net assets before January 1,
2019, As of January 1, 2019, the amount of “Right of Use Assets” and “Lease Liabiliy™ were calculated for the remaining
period by taking into consideration the contracts that have been due for more than 12 months. -
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PO = i
Chperating Leases

The lease process, where a significant part of the property risks and retums belong to the lessor, is classified as an operating
lease. Rental payrents is recognised in the consolidated statement of income as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term,

The lease contracts as the Group as the lessee are related to office, warchouses and motor vehicles leases in Istanbul,
Divarbakir and Ankara. Annual rental paymenis is recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Giroup - as @ lessee

{xperaling Leases

Assets leased out under opernting leases are included in investment property, property, plant and equipment or other current
assets in the balance sheet, Rental income is recognised in the consolidated statement of mcome on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The lease contracts as the Group as the lessor as a party of the contract, arise from the part of warehouse in which the Group
operates and a non Growp company which uses as the office and warehouse.

20814 Related Parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial statements, shareholders, parents of Indeks Bilgisayar A3, key management
personnel and Board of Directors members, their close family members and the legal entities over which these related parties
exercise control and significant influence, are considered and expressed as “related parties™. The detailed explanation of
related parties is disclosed in Note 37,

2.08.15 Government Granis
Mome.
208.16 Investment Propertics

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020 invesiment properties of the Group are accounted for on the basis of the following
principles:

Land and bauildings that are held for rental vields or for capital appreciation or both rather than held in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes or for the sale in the ordinary course of business are classified as
“investment property”. Investment properties are camried af cost less accumulated depreciation. If it meets the accepied
principles, the cost of changing any part of the existing investment property is inclhuded in the amount in the balance sheet.
Daily repair and maintenance for investment properties is not included in the above mentioned amount.

Depreciation has been provided for straight line bases, based on the economic useful lives, in order to deduct the cost of each
assel to its token value, in accordance with the to the annual rate of 2%,

Investment properties are derecgonized, in the event that investment properties are fully depreciated or sold. Gains or losses
on sales of mvestment properties is recognized in the income statement as profit or loss.

17




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH
INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, IOzl
frilmoualy dne exparesied i 7L ") umilvss oo e indicatsd )

L0817 Taxes on Income

Income tax expense (or mcome) is the sum of the current tax expense and the deferred tax expense {or income).
Current Toax

Current year tax liability is caleulated over the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the mcome statement because it excludes items of income or expense thal arc taxable or deductible in other years and it
exchedes items that cannot be taxed or deducted. The Group's linhility for current tax is caloulated using legal stafuory tax
rates that hove been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deeferred tax assets and liabilities are determined by calculating the temporary differences between the emounts shown in the
consolidated financial satements and the amounts considered in the statutory tax base in accordance with the balance sheet
method. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary différences, whereas deferred tax assets resulting
from deductible temporary differences are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. Deferred tax liability or asset is not calculated in respect
of temporary timing differences arising from the initial recognition of assets or linbilities other than goodwill or business
combinations amd which do not affect both commeercial and financial profit Moss.

Dweferred tax liabilities are calculated for all taxable temporary differences related 1o the investments in subsidiaries and
associates and shares in joinl ventures, excepl in cases where the Group is able to control the discontinuation of temporary
differences and in the near futare it is unlikely that such difference will be eliminated. Deferred tax assets resulting from
taxable temporary differences related to such investments and shares are calculated on the condition that it is highly probable
that future taxable profit will be available and that it is probable that future differences will be eliminated.

The carrying amount of the deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date, The carrving amount of a deferred tax
assel is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that financial profit will be available to allow the benefit of some
o that entire amount.

Deeferred tax pssets and liabilities are calculated over the tax rates that are expected to be valid in the period when the assets
are realized or the liabilities are fulfilled and legalized or substantially legalized as of the balance sheet date (tax regulstions).
During the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, the tax consequences of the methods that the Group expects to
recover or settle the carrying amount of the assets as of the balance sheet date are taken into consideration,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized when there is a legal right 1o offset current tax assets and current tax

liabilities, or il such assets and liabilities are associated with the income 1ax collected by the same tax authority, or if the
CGiroup intends to pay off the current tax assets and liabilities.

Current and duferred fax for the period

The deferred tax, other than those directly atributable (o debt or lability recognized in equity (in which case deferred 1ax is
recognized directly in equity) or deferred tax, other than those arising from initial recognition of business combinations, is
recognized as income or expense in the income siatement. In business combinations, the tax effect is taken into consideration
in the calculation of goodwill or in determining the part of the purchaser that exceeds the acquisition cost of the share of the
acquirec’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities in the fair value.

The taxes included in the consolidated financial statements include current period tax and the change in deferred taxes. The
Ciroup calculates cumrent and deferred tax on the results for the period.

{Mffsetting in Tax Assets and Linbifities

The amaunt of corporate tax payable is netied because it is related 1o prepaid corporate tax amounts. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are also offset in the same way,
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2.08.18 Employment Termination Benefits

The provision for employmend termination benefits, as required by Turkish Labour Law represents the present value of the
future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of its employees based on the actuarial projections.

TAS 19 “Employee Benefits™ requires actuarial assumptions (net discount rate, tumover rate 1o estimate the probability of
refirement eic.) to estimiate the entity”™s obligation for employment termination benefits, The effects of differences between
the actuarial assumptions and the actual outcome together with the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions compose the
sctuarial gains / losses and recognised under other comprehensive income.

S08.19 Stalement of Cash Flow

Cash fMows during the period are classified and reponed by operating, investing and financing activities in the cash flow
slatements,

Cash flows from operating activities represent the cash flows generated from the Group's activities, Cash flows from
imvesting activities represent the cash flows that are used in or provided from the investing activities of the Group (tangibke
and intangible assets and financial assets).

Cash flows from Mnancing activities represent the cash proceeds from the financing activities of the Group and the repayments
of these funds.

208.20 Income Accruals

Almost all of the products sold by the Group are of foreign arigin. A portion of foreign purchases of some foreign companies
or the companies from resident companies in Turkey are performed operations which are resident companies in Turkey.
Depending on the realization of the targets given by the domestic or foreign companies, some costs are taken under the name
of “rebate”, “risturn”, “sell our” and “bonus™ or deducted from current accounts. These values are recognized as credit note
income accrual on the balance sheet asset by providing the 1ergets or conditions given by the seller companies. These prices
gre deducted or collected from the current account with the documents issued by the vendors under “rebate”™, “ristum™, “szll
out” and “bonus” and “credit note™ within arranged documents (or invoices issued by the Group).

108,21 Warranty Provisions

The Group serves the Turkey distributor of information technology products. The guarantees of the products sold are given
by the companies appointed by the manufacturers. The products offered to us under warranty come from the dealers and are
sent to the manufacturers or manufacturers appointed by the manufacturers for repair. For products that need to be replaced
within the scopc of warranty afler repair, new products are given 1o the customers and the amount is billed to the
manufaciurers, The Group has no warranty provisions during the period.

L% Mew and Revised Turkish Financial Reporting Standards

i} The standard, Amendments, and interpretations that are not effective or an early adoption is not used by the
Company a5 of December 31, 2021, are as follows:

Srandards ssued bui not et effective and not early adopted

A number of new standards, interpretations of and amendments to existing standards ane not effective at reporting date and
carlier application is permitted; however the Company has oot early sdopted are as follows.

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021 (the 2021 amendment)

International Standard Board(IASB) has extended the practical expedient by 12 months — permitting lessees o apply it to
rent concessions for which any redwction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
The original amendment was issued in May 2020 10 make it easier for lessees to account for covid-19-related rent concessions,
such as rent holidays and temporary rent reductions, while continuing to provide useful information about their leases to
investors, Related changes were published by POA as Amendments 1o TFRS 16 on June 5, 2020,
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The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021. Lessees are permitted to apply
it carly, including in financial statements not authorised for issue as of 31 March 2021 the date of publication of this
amendment. In other words, if the financial statements for the accounting periods before the date of publication of the
amendment have not yet boen issued, it is possible to apply this amendment for the relevant financial staterments,. The 2021
amendments are applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying it being recognised in opening
refained camings.

The original version of the practical expedicnt was, and remains, optional. However, the 2021 amendments are, in effect, not
opticnal. This is because a lessee that chose o apply the practical expedient introduced by the 2020 amendments has o
consistently apply the extension to eligible contracts with similar characteristics and in similar circumstances,

This means that kessees will need to reverse previous lease modification accounting if a rent concession was ineligible for
the criginal practical expedient under the 2020 amendments but becomes eligible as a resuli of the extension,

Reference to the Conceplual Framework (Ameadmenis to TFRS 3)

In May 2020, IASE issued Reference to the Conceptual Framework, which made amendments to [FRS 3 Business
Combinations.

The amendments updated IFRS 3 by replacing o reference to an old version of the Board's Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporing with a reference 1o the latest version, which was issued in March 2018, And then, TFRS 3 amendmaant
was issued on 27 July 2020 by POA 1o reflect these amendments.

The Company shall apply these amendments for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 with carlier application
permited,
Property, Plant and Equipment—~FProceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to TAS 16)

Im May H20, [ASE isswed Property, Flant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use, which made amendments 1o LIAS
|6 Property, Plant and Equipment.

The amendments improve transparency and consistency by clarifying the accounting requirements—specifically, the
amendments prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received from
selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, a company will recognise such
sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. And then, TAS 16 amendment was issued on 27 July 2020 by POA o reflect
these amendments,

The Company shall apply these amendments for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 with carlier application
permitted, The amendments apply retrospectively, but only to items of Property, Plant and Equipment made available for use
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the company first applies the
amendments.

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendments to TAS 37)

In bay 2020, LASH Bsued Onerous Contracts = Cost of Fulfilling a Contract, which made amendments to [JAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asscis.

The amendments specify which cosis an entity includes in determining the cost of fulfilling a comract for the purpose of
assessing whether the contract is enerous. And then, TAS 37 amendment was issued on 27 July 2020 by POA to reflect these
amendments.

1ASH developed amendments to TAS 37 to clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous, the cost
of fulfilling the contract includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts,

The Company shall apply these amendments for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 with carlier application
permitted. At the date of initial application, the cumulative effect of applying the amendments is recognised as an opening
balance adjusiment to retained earnings or other compoenent of equity, as appropriate. The comparatives are not restated.




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
IS5UED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{A wronrnty are expressed i T P welesr opkarwdss daalioamed

TFRS 17 — Insarance Contracis

On 16 February 2019, POA issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts. This first truly globally accepted standard for insurance
contracts will help investors and others better understand insurers’ risk exposure, profitability and financial position. TFRS
17 replaces TFRS 4, which was brought in as an interim Standard in 2004. TFRS 4 has given companies dispensation to camy
an mmn:'mg For maurance conlracts r.L::i:'lE national it:vul.mll'lig Dandards, :I'LHI.IJII.TI.H 1n a malttede of different wqa.dus.
As a consequence, it is difficult for investors to compare and contrast the financial performance of otherwise similar
companies. TFRS 17 solves the comparison problems created by TFRS 4 by requiring all insurance contracts to be accounted
for in a consistent manner, beneliting both investors and insurance companies. Insurance obligations will be accounted for
using current values ~ instead of historical cost. The information will be updated regularly, providing more useful information
o users of financial statements. TFRS 17 has an effective date of | Janwary 2023 but companics can apply it earlier,

The Company does not expect that application of TFRS 17 will have significant impact on iis financial statements.
Initinl Application of TFRS 17 and TFRS % - Comparative Information (Amendment to TFRS 17)

In December 2021, IASE issued Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9—Comparative Information (Amendment to IFRS
i 7). Related changes were published by POA as Amendments to TFRS 17 on 31 December 2021,

The amendment is a transition option relating 1o comparative information about financial assets presented on initial
application of TFRS 17, The amendment is aimed ot helping entities 10 avoid temporary accounting mismatches between
financial asseis and insurance contract liabilities, and therefore improve the usefulness of comparative information for users
of financial ststements. TFRS 17 incorporating the amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 Janwary MI23,

The Company does not expect that application of these amendments to TFRS 17 will have significant impact on its financial
statements.

Amendmenis o TFRS 4; Applying TFRS % Financial Instruments with TFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

TFRS 4 has also been amended by POA within the amendments isseed by JTASE in order 10 reduce the impact of the differing
effective dates of the new insurance contracts standard and TFRS 9. These amendments to TFRS 4 provide two optional
solutions. for insurers (o reduce concerns about implementations: i) when applying TFRS 9 by insurers 1o s financial assets,
an insurer will be permitted 1o reclassify the difference between profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
amounts recognised in profit or loss under TFRS 9 and those that would have been reported under TAS 39; or §i) an optional
temporary exemption from applying TFRS 9 for companies whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance
before January 1, 2021. These companies will be permitied 10 continue to apply existing requirements for financial
instruments in TAS 39,

The Company does not expect that application of these amendments to TFRS 4 will have significant impact on its financial
statements.
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to TAS 1)

Om 23 January 2020, JASH issued “Classification of Liabilitics as Current or Non-Current” which amends [AS | Presentation
of Fmancial Stmements to clarify its requirements for the presentation of liabilitkes in the statement of financial position
which are issued by POA on 12 March 2020 as amendments (o TAS 1,

The amendments clarify one of the criteria in TAS | for classifying a liability as non-current—ihat is, the requirement for an
entity to have the right to defer settbement of the Hability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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The amendments include:

{a) Specifying that an entity’s right to defer senlement must exist at the end of the reporting period;

(b) Clarifying thm classification is unaffected by management's intentions or expectations about whether the entity will
gxercise its right to defer settlement;

) Clarifving how lending conditions affect classification; and

{d) Clarifying requirements for classifying liabilities an entity will or may settle by issuing its own equily instruments.

The Company shall apply retrospectively these amendments for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 with
carlier application permitted. However, [ASE decided to defer the effective date of 1AS | until 1 January 2023 with the
amendment published on 15 July 2020, and the amendment was issued by POA on 15 January 2021,

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the amendments
o lAS |

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction - Amendmenis to TAS 12 Income
Taxes

In May 2021 [ASE issued Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilittes arising from a Single Transaciion, which amended
IAS 12 Income Taxes. Related chonges were published by POA as Amendments to TAS 12 on 27 August 3021,

The amendments to TAS 12 Income Taxes clanfy how companies should account for deferred tax on certain transactions —
e.g. leases and decommiissioning provisions.

The amendments narmow the scope of the initial recognition exemption 5o that it does not apply 10 transactions that give rise
to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognise a deferred tax asset and o deferred
tax hability for temiporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision.

The amendments clarify that the exemplion does not apply 0 transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Thesi ransaciions give rise 1o equal and offsetting temporary dilferences,

For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need 1o be recognised from
the beginning of the carliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment 1o retained
carnings or other componenis of equity an that date. If & company previously accounted for deferred tax on kases and
decommissioning liabilities under the net approach, then the impact on wransition is likely to be limited 1o the separate
presentation of the deferred tax asset and the deferred tax linbilizy.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after | Janvary 2023, Earlier application is
permitted.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the amendments
o Amendments to TAS 12

Definition of Accouniing Estimates { Amendmenis to TAS 8)

The amendments introduce a new definition for sccounting estimates: clarifyving that they are monetary amounts in the
financial statements that are subject (o measurement uncertainty which i issued by IASB on 12 Februany 2021, Related
changes were published by POA as Amendmenis 1o TAS % on 11 August 2021.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a
company develops an accounting estimale (o achieve the objective set oul by an sccounting policy.

Dreweloping an accounting estimate includes both:

*  selecting a measurement technique (estimation or valuation technigque) - e.g. an estimation technique used 1o
measure a loss allowance for expected credit losses when applying IFRES 9 Financial Instruments; and

*  choosing the inputs to be used when applying the chosen measurement technigue — e.g. the expected cash outflows
for determining a provision for warranty obligations when applying TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Lishilities and
Contingent Assets,
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The effects of changes in such inputs or measurement technigues are changes in acoounting estimates. The definition of
accounting policies remains unchanged.

The amendments are ¢ffective for periods beginning on or after | Janwary 2023, with earlier application permitted, and will
apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies ocourming on or after the begmning
of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the amendments.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the amendments
to Amendments 1o TAS §)

Dizclosure of Aceounting Policles (Amendments to TAS 1)

IASB has issued amendments 10 IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to IFRES Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures on 12 February 2021. Among
these amendments, the ones related 1o TAS | were published by POA as Amendments 10 TAS | on 1] August 2021,

The key amendments to TAS | include:

requiring companies (o disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies;
#  clarifving that accounting policies related to immaterinl transactions, other events or conditions are themselves
immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and
# clarifving that not all accounting policies that relate 1o material wransactions, other events or conditions are
themselves marerial to a company s financial staternents.

The amendments are effective from | January 2023, but companies can apply it earlier.

The Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the amendments
to Amendments o TAS 1)

Anmual Fnprovemenis fo TFRS Standardy 2018-2020
Improvements to TFRSs

For the current standards, "Anneal Improvements in TFRSs / 2008-2020 Cycle" published by POA on 27 July 2020 is
presented below, The amendments are effective as of | January 2022, Earlier application is permitted. The Company does
not expect that application of these improvements to TFRSs will have significant impact on its financial statements,

TFRS | Firsi-time Adopiion of Internatiomal Fincneial Bepoartinmg Stamakaras

This amendment simplifies the application of TFRS | for a subsidiary that becomes a (irst-time adopter of IFRS Stndards
later than its parent — Le. if a subsidiary adopts TFRS Standards later than its parent and applies TFRS 1.D16(a), then a
subsidiary may elect 1o measure cumulative ranslation differences for all Foreign operations at amounts included in the
consolidated financial statements of the parent, based on the parent's date of transition to TFRSs, This amendment will ease
transition t¢ TFRS Standards for subsidianes n.pfi:,.'ins this -n|:|l|'|:|r|n.1 -E:i!:mpﬁurl 1:3,- 'i_!l mdun:'r:lg_ unde coste: and 'ii:l n.'um'd'ms
the need to maintain parallel sets of accounting

TFRS & Finaricial fnstrumients

This amendment clarifies that — for the purpose of performing the ** 10 per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities
— in determining those fees paid net of fees received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the bormower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

TAS 41 Agriculnure

This amendment removes the requirement to exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring fair value, thereby aligning the
fair value measurement requirements in TAS 41 with those in TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The amendments provide
the flexibility to use cither, as appropriate, in line with TFRS 13,
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Amendments are effective on 1 Janaary 2021
Changes that have become effective and have been adopted for anmual periods beginning on or after 1 January 20210:

Interest Rate Benchmark Beform — Phase 2 - Amendments 1o TFRS 9 Financial Instruments, TAS 39 Financial [nstruments:
Recognition and Measurement, TFRS 7 Financial Instruments; Disclosures, TFRS 4 Insurance Contrasts and TFRS 16 Leases

There is no the impacts of these amendments on financial position and performance of the Group

NOTE 3 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In accordance with the investment and growth plans, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate’s effective cwnership inmerest rale has
changed following the acquisition of 49,13% of Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.5 of 11.300.9%4 number of shares,
Deesbil Teknolojik Urtinler A_S., M. Erol Bilecik and other shareholders shares purchased at the unit amount of TL 4,67 total
TL 52,775, 640 on 12 March 2020, Business combinations under common control should be accounted for pooling of interest
mithaosd,

i) Therefore, goodwill should not be included in the consolidated financial statements,

i) During the initial application of pooling of interest method, the consolidated financial statements should be corrected as if
the business combination had taken place at the beginning of the reporting period in which the business combination under
common control was performed and presented compartively from the beginning of the reporting period in which the joint
conirel was performed and

iiii) Since it would be appropriate to consider the business combinations subject to joint control from the perspective of the
parent company in the reflection of the consolidated financial statements, the Group has restated the prior years financial
staterments as if the consolidated financial statements were prepared according to TAS, on the date and after the Group, which
holds the control of the Group during the consolidation, has the control over the companies under business combination in
accordance with TAS provisions,

Therefore, goodwill has not been calculated as a result of these transactions, the difference arising from the of the subsidiary
amount and the amount of effective ownership interest rate of the purchased Group recognised as “Business Combinations
under Common Control™ directly in equity, The transaction has been accounted for in accordance with “Business
Combinations under Common Control™ annownced by POA numbesed 2003-1.

Therefore, goodwill has not been calculated in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition of Despec Bilgisavar
Pazarlama ve Ticaret A.S, The dilference arising from total acquisition cost and the Group's share of the net asset value of
financial statements of Despec Bilgisayar Pazarlama ve Ticaret A§ prepared in accordance with TFRS recognised as
“Business Combinations under Common Control™ directly in equity.

Business Combinathons Under Common Control- Amount (TL}
Change of Control S|
Carrving value of Despec shares (29.02.2020) | 83,164,172
Carrving value of Group's share (49,1347565%) {40.862.514)
Acquisition Cost 52.775.642
Business Combinations under Common Control {net 11.913.128
change from the change of cantrol)

NOTE 4 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

The jointly controlled entities of the Group Neteks [letisim Uriinleri Dagitim A.S. and Neteks Tekneloji A.S. are consolidated
in accordance with the equity method until 29 February 2020. As of 1| March 2020, the financial statements of Neteks [letisim
Ortinleri Dagiim A5, and Neteks Teknoloji Uriinleri A.S have been accounted for using the full consolidation method. In
accordance with the registration on 2,11.2020, our 100*; subsidiaries of Neteks letisim Uriinleri Dagiim A5, and Artim
Bilisim Czilmleri A.S, have been controlled by the following acquisition of Neteks Teknoloji Urlinkeri Anonim Sirketi, our
|00% subsidiary, and the following acquisition have been made through share transfer in sccordance with the article
numbered 134 and relsred articles of the Turkish Commercial Code and the articles numbered 18, 19 and 20 of the Corporate
Tax Law No. 5520, : -
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The balance sheets and income statements dated 2002 2020 are as follows:

29.02.2020 29022020
Meteks A5 Meteks Tek. A5,

ASSETS
Current Assets 172.664.352 231550341
Cash and Cash Equivalents LRSI 17844065
Trade Reveivables F3.310.460 160783 G2
Onber Beceivables 219352 25123373
Iavenaries Eodg20m 4
Prepaid Expenies 2515 285124
Current Income Tax Avscls - 405
Oither Camment Assels 23 E071 5. G0
Non Currest Assets 521593 1.794.461
Propenty, Plant and Equipment 52500 637,36
Right of Lise Assets T4.451 157836
Intangible Assas 677534 B3 350
Deferred Tax Asscts 4414440 2 RI3.850
TOTAL ASSETS 177863186 2354800
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilithes 174910950 145,460,185
Short Term Liabilities Bl 03T 113083 90
Trade Pavables 139411420 133441 804
Employvee Benefits Payables = 168 6TH
Oitber Payables 25.007. 768 Q44773
Deforred Income 1.581.846 450358
Shon Term Provisions B.545. 906 5379568
Mon Cerrent Lisbilities 232 9.4
Long Term Liabilities it fis I69. 592
Provigion for Employment Termination Benefits = 280372
EQUITY 1949004 (1LST4.34T)
Paid in Share Capital 1. 1 G CH0NEH LR
Adjustment 1o Share Capital 2525630 29,453
{ither Comprebensive Income or Expenses not b he
Reclnssified 1o Profit or Loss - {1599.303)
Cither Comprehensive [neoms of Expenses 1o be
Reclassified 1o Profit or Loss 14027.622 (1.729,444)
Restricted Keserves From Retained Earmings 22000 3
Prior Years Income (14.T56.57T) (6.354.574)
Bet Profit for the Period (16T.691) (AR
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 177882286 135 344807
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.01 20X 101 2020
20022020 20022020
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS Neteks A.S. Neteks Tek. A.S.
et Sales GR. 144,074 TT.920 035
o of sales(«) (6T 6D0469) {TTAHEL A1 E])
GROSS PROFIT (LOSS) FROM TRADE OPERATION 5213605 220,517
GROSS PROFIT R13.605 920.517
Cieneral Admenistrative Expenses (=) (34.591) (415445}
Marketing, Sales and Ddstribution (=) (211318} { 1. 486644
Cher imcome from operating activities LART0A 6 850 64
Cahser expenses from operating activilies (3,582, THE) (5.B47.867)
OFERATIMNG PROFIT /[ {LD55) FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS {TIT.41E) 30197
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCIAL
INCOMENEXFENSE) {T17.418) 30,197
Financial Income/Txpenses 722971 (3238.572)
FROFITHLOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OFERATIONS 5581 (3.208.375)
Tax infeme\capense) (173.244) TRT.EN
- Cugrent income tax expense . )
= Dheferred Lo incoise (173.244) TET.EM
Adiributable in: (167.691) (2.420.481)
Mon-Contredling Interests . -
Equity Holders of the Parent (167.691) (2.420.481)
NOTE 5 SEGMENT REPORTING

The segment reporting of the Group classified as IT Technologies and telecommunication and logistics services and leasing.
IT Technelogies group comprise of PC. notebooks, telecommunication and networking products, computer components and
mobile phones. The financial information regarding the gross profit / loss on the basis of the operating segments of the Group
for the period ends are as follows:

January 1, 2021- December 31, 2021

IT Techmologies and  Logistics Services
Statement of Profil or Loss Telecommunieation and Leasing Total Eliminai#n Comsolidated
Enira sepmeni reverue 13,085 318 367 [l il 11090 576 A63 - 13050 575 363
Inier segment reveme = B7.623 252 ST 821212 (6T A2 230
Revenue 1 LERE FIRAST Th.E81.228 13059, DS 16T633.232) 1509) 57660
Cost of Sales {= {12525 B19.774) B (12525 19 774) - (12525 819.774)
i rioes Profiey Loss)y 550,470,003 7i.881.28 633380521 (67422232} SB5.TRT.0K9

January 1, 2020- December 31, 2020

IT Techoodogic and Logistics Servioes
Stadement of Profit or Loss Telecoms munbcation and Leaskng Toial E liin brva Comenlidated
Entra sepmes revenss 1625k 337 228 AR T 10245 0010 022 * 10,255 000,022
Inier segmenl. revone . &l 728.625 61, TIE 53 ([ Beps & i i -
Revenue ILI51. 357118 R Al LGIY 10FI6 THE 84T (b1 TIHAIL) 10255000022
Cost ol Sales i=) (9. B68,318,232) - (A5 3 18.232) - (%860 318230
Grass Profie] Loss) IH2018.99% 5411619 MTAMGIS  (GLTIRES) 385701790
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NOTE & CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents of the Group as of the end of the period are as follows.

Account Name December 31,2021 December 31, 2020
Cash in hand 257642 I 59 866
Banks (Demand Dieposits) 1.821.765.363 B00.283.072
Financial Assets Held 1o Manerity (Reverse Repo and Time

Deposits) 268,590,851 511.170.500
Credit Card Slips 4388428 7.349.073
Total 2.095.002.284 1.318.962.511

As of December 31, 2021, reverse repo and demand deposits total amounted of interest accrued to TL 190,851 and the
maturity is 1 = 4 days. The reverse repo transactions are TL. the annual interest rates are 15,02 % - 26,45 % for TL.

As of December 31, 2021 credit card slips have the maturity of 1-31 days and total amounted of interest accrued is TL
16.815, The credit card slips interest rates are 18 % for TL. Total amount of net interest is TL 174.036 in groups cash and
cash equivalents

As of 31 December 2020, reverse repo and demand deposits interest accrued total amounted to TL 152,884 and the maturity

is | day. The reverse repo transactions are TL and USD and the annoal interest rates are 12,74% - 17,63% for TL and 0.20%
for UISD,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 the Group's has no blocked deposits and pledges in the cash and cash equivalents.
In the statement of cash flow, the Group's cash and cash equivalents are presented less the interest accrual.

Cash and Cash Equivalents December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.005.002.284 1.318.962.511
Deferred Interest Incomel-) / Deferred Interest Expenses (+) {174.036) = {152.884)
Total 2.094.828.248 1.318.809.627

NOTE 7 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Ag of 31.12.2021, the Group has no short term short-term and long-term financial investments.

NOTE 8 SHORT-TERM, LONG-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND SHORT TERM PORTION OF LONG
TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Short Term Financial Linbilities for the periods ended are as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 Decemhber 31, 20240
Bank Bormmowings 1.114.333.011 4T 582 286
Lease Liabilities §.5809.945 6.217.832
Toial Jl_.]iﬂ.ﬂll.ﬂiﬁ RS3RML1 1R

There is no short term portion of long term financial linbilities a1 the end of the periods.
Long Term Financial Liabilities for the periods ended are as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Lease Liabilities 6.774.488 10.797.435
Total 6. 774,458 10,797,435
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As of December 31, 2021, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate's has no short term borrowings portion amounted to TL (31
Drecember 2020: TL 50.003.165 ) include contracted campaigns with terms of 6 months, 12 months, 24 months and 36 months
sold to subscribers of Tiirk Telekom Group (Tark Telekominikasyon A5, TT Mobil lletigim Hizmetberi A.§. and TTNET
A.S5.) has been used for financing, and total loan agreement are under Tark Telekom Croup guarantorship. Within the scope
of these contracted campaigns, the receivables from the dealers are assignment of trade receivables to Tiirk Telekom Group
{Turk Telekominikasyon A.S.. TT Mobil lletisim Hizmetleri A.S. and TTNET A5.) and collections are made by Tork

Telekom Group(Turk Telekominikasyon A.5., TT Mobil lletigim Hizmetleri A.$. and TTNET A5} at maturity and paid to
the hanks.

Tl and USD denominated short and long term lease liabilities amounted 1o TL 13.364.433, (December 31, 2020: TL
17.015.267)

Movements of the liabilities are as below!

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Balanee at Jamuary | B3 357,553 JRE. TN 948
Principal and Interest Additions During the Period 1.468.557.742 1.300.096. 284
Lease Liabilities 13.364.433 I'7.015367
Principal and Interest Payments During the Period (1.253.378.171) {1.089.443.422)
Additions in the scope of the Consalidation - 115.340.879
Interest Accrual a1 the End of the Period 3555847 23.803.507
Balance at Ending 1.127.697.444 B64.597.883
The details of short-term liabilities are explained below.
December 31, 2021
Currency TL Annual Effective
Type Amount Amaount Interest Rate (%)
TL Loans G55216.384 15, 40-3 3,00
TL Leare Liahilities 65389945 I8 00-21,00
LS Lo 34.383.052 A5 1 16,627 1,005, 75
Total Short Term Lishilities 1.120.922.956
December 31, 3020
Currency TL Annual Effective
Type Amouni Amaouni Interesi Rafe (%a)
TL Loans Sh6. 827,958 FA U ey
TL Lease Liahilities a060 561 T8 002100
LR Leare Lichilities A1 ee 148 371 7.
LIS Lovaes A5 247303 28754 328 I 85-512
Total Short Term Liabilities HSIBMLIIR
December 31, 2021

There is no short term portion of long term financial liabilities at the end of the periods

The details of long-term liabilities are explained below,

December 31, 2021

Currency TL Annual Effective
Type Amounni Amount lniterest Rate (%)
TL Lease Liohilities 6. 774 488 F8.00 — 21,00
Total Long Term Liabilities 6,774,488
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December 31, 2030

T Currency TL Annual Effective
= Amount Amount Interest Rate (%)

T Lease Liohilities 10.797 435 18,00 — 21,00

Total Long Term Liabilities 10.797.435

The redemption schedule of bank borrowings, lease liabilities and finance lease habilities is as follows:
Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
012 months 1.120.922.956 E53.800.118
|3-36 months 6.774.488 10.797.435
Total 1.127.697.444 864.507.553

NOTE 9 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no other financial liabilites.-
NOTE 10 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAY A ELES

As of December 31 202 1and 2020, short term trade receivables is as fiollows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 __Degember 31, 2020
Trade Receivables 3.198.3351.135 1.702.326.535
Trade Receivables from Relaled Parties 1118 83173
Trade Recetvables from Non Related Parties 3198 350.007 1702243, 362

- (hher Receivables 3 198.350.007 1.649.623.841

= Assignment of Trade Receivables . 32.619.521
Motes Receivables 376114619 327323 568
Rediscount on Motes Receivables (-) (20.620.348) (15.745.3T0)
Doubtful Trade Receivables 9.3 560 30.925.364
Provision for Doubtful Trade Receivables (-) (39.340.860) (30.925.364)
Total 3.553.845.206 2.013.904.733

As of December 31, 2021, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate’s has no short term portion of assignment of trade
receivables.

As of 31 December 2020, the subsidiary of the Group, Datagate's short term portion of assignment of trade receivables
amounted 10 TL 52,619,521 include contracted campaigns with terms of 6 months, 12 months, 24 months and 36 months
sold 10 subscribers of Tirk Telekom Group (Tark Telekominikasyon A.3.. TT Mohbil letisim Hizmetleri A.5. and TINET
A.5.) has been used for financing of mobile devices, and thess receivables are under Tark Telekom Group guarantorship.
The portion amounted to TL 50.003.165 was assigned 1o banks against for the loans used by Datagate Bilgisayar Malzemeleri
Ticaret A.$ within the scope of the same campaigns. The collections of receivables from devices are from Datagate
subseribers by Tork Telekom Group(Tark Telekombnikasyon A5, TT Mebil fletisim Hizmetleri A.%. and TTNET A5.)
dealers are made by Tark Telekom Group (Tirk Tebekominikasyon A.5.. TT Mobil ihetigim Hizmetleri A.$. and TTNET
A 5.} at maturities. The Group uses bormowings by assignment of trade receivables resulting from the sales of devices 1o
financial instutions.

In accordance with the assignment terms and conditions, the principal and interests of the loans are paid by Tirk Telekom
Group. In addition, Datagate's assignment of trade receivables, whose collection is mediated by Tork Telekom Group, are
also collected by imevocable transfer and assignment to factoring companies. In accordance with the assignment terms and
conditions, the principal and interests of the loans are paid by Tark Telekom Group.
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As of December 31 2021 and 2020, the Group has no long term trade receivables.

As of 31 December 2021, the TL 1.903.767.313 portion of receivables total amount of TL 3.553.845,206 are Euler Hermes
guarantorship. The remaining balance of TL |.650.077.893 portion of trade receivables are guarantesd by TL 190.475.725
with collaterals obtained by Group's customers.. The related disclosures regarding the nature of risks of trade receivables
included in Note 38,

Iy addition, the portion amounted 1o TL 190.475.725 include collaterals otiained by Group's customers.

As of 31 December 2020, the above mentioned portion of receivables amounted to TL 52.619.521 in total amount of TL
3 (313,904,733 are under Tirk Tebekom Group guarantorship (Tork Telekombnikasyon A%.. T.T. Mobil letigim Hizmetleri
AS. ve TTNET A.5). In addition, the portion amounted to TL 165.039.864 include collaterals obiained by Group's
customers. The remaining portion of trade receivables amounted to TL 726.458.537 in total amount of TL 1.287.446_19 is
guarantee in scope of Euler Hermes. The related disclosures regarding the nature of risks of trade receivables included in
Mobe 38,

The Group has credit insurance policy from Euler Hermes Sigora A.S. within borders of Turkey for insuring its trade
recivables until 31.03.2022. (the payment guarantee for rade receivables is determined as 85% - 90%)

Janwary 1, 2021~ January 1, 2020-

_December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Balance at the Beginning of the Period (-) {30.925.364) (24 438.386)
Additions in the scope of Consolidation(® ) . (2.390.185)
Collections During the Period (+) Z ;
Expenses During the Period (-] (B.4154%5) {4.006,793)
Balance at the End of the Period {39, 340.860) (30.925.364)

{*}0n 28 Febroary 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of
%0 00% shares from Neteks lletigim Urinleri Dagiim A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Urlinleri A5 and effective ownership
interest rate increased from $0,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of | March 2020, the
financial statements of Neteks Hletisim Orinleri Daginm A.S. and Neteks Teknologi Oriinkeri A5 have begn accounted for
using the full consolidation method.

The related disclosures regarding the nature of risks of trade receivables incleded in Note 38,
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, short term trade payables is as follows:

Account Mame December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Trade payables 4262270679 2,297 543.552
Ohers 4.262.173.851 2.207.287.342
Duve s relared parties 06,828 256.210
Motes payables - -
Discount of notes payables (-} (2055, 114) (49001157}
Total 4,253.117.565 2.292.642.395

The Company has no non-current trade receivables.

The average maturity of trade receivables and payables is up to 3 monihs. In the case of rediscount of trade receivables and
payables, compound interest rates of Government Debt Securities are used as effective interest rate in TL receivables and
payables.,

Lihar rates are used in the accruals of TL and USD denominated receivables and pavables. 31 December 2021: TL 18% USD
00,5831 % (31 December 2020: TL 17,25% USD 0,34188%)
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NOTE 11 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, short term other receivables is as follows:

Accouni Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Deposits and Guarantees Given 14.105 86262
Receivables from Employees 10658440 48342
Other Receivables (*) N 485,065 $70.001
Total 1565010 1. 504,605

(*1As of 31 December 2021, other receivables amount is ansing from receivables from tax office. (31 December 2020: TL
569.996)

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, long term other receivables i as follows:

Accouni Mame Dhecember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Deposits and Guaraniees Given JFE.940 EEAT]]
Total Ag.941 AR.941

The related disclosures regarding the nature of risks of other receivables included in Note 38,

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, short term other payables is as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Taxes, Fees and Other Deductions Payable 31.966.137 32.256.T29
[reposits and Guarantees Received 270312 184312
Mon-Trade Receivables From Other Pavables to Related

Parties (Note 3T) - .
iOither Payvables 44,354 12. 705
Taoial 32.259.843 32.453.746

MOTE 12 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
The derivative instruments of the Group included in current assels are as follows:

Apcount Name December 31, 20210 December 31, 220
Dicrivatives Receivables 42.950.689 -
Taotal 4100, 685 -

As of December 31, 2021, the Group has foreign exchange purchase contract amounted to USD 46,825,335, and EUR
| (6h.000, The contract §-3 months maturities contracts of USD 45 843 018 and EUR 100,000 The contract has 4-12 months
maturities for remaining contracts of LSO 981.417. As of 31 December 2021, the fair value of the contracts amounted to
TL 582692 871 and appraisal value of TL 42,950,680 recognised as an income.

s of December 31, 2020 the Group has no receivables reganding derivative instruments.
Derivative instruments included in curremt liabilities is as follows:

Accouni Mame December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Derivatives Payables - 27.721.631
Total = 27.721.631

As of December 31 2021, the Group has no payables regarding derivative instruments.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group made foreign exchange purchase contracts which have maturities. USD 39.304.028 and
EUR 135435 of contracts are 0-3 months and USD 8.033.545 of contracts are 4-12 months. As of 31 December 2020, the
fair value of the contracts amounted o TL 376,423,071 and appraisal value of TL 27.721.631 recognised as an ex

3l
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HOTE 13 INVENTORIES
As of December 11, 2021, and 2020, inventories is s follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Merchandise 941.722215 434.854.050
Goods in Transit 66.3335.663 90.264.307
Provision for Inventory Impairment {-) {24.102.404) {15.772.826)
Total 983.955.474 £00,345.531

Inventories whose invoices are received at an earlier date than their physical entry in the warchouses are classified under
the account “Goods in Transit™,

January 1, 2021- January 1, 2020-
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Beginning of the Period (-) (15.772.826) (8.738.328)
Additions in the scope of Consolidation (*} - (1.261.149)
Cancellation of Provision Due to Increase in Net Realizable Value

Met (+) = =
Provisions During the Period / Currency Translation Differences (-} (8.329.578) {5.773.349)
End of the Period (-) (24.102.404) (15.772.826)

(*}On 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of
50,00% shares from Neteks letigim Uriinleri Dagitim A.$. and Meteks Teknoloji Uriinleri A§ and effective ownership
interest rate increased from $0,00% to 100% with the additional scquisition of share purchase. As of 31 December 2019 and
201K, the financial statements of Neteks {letisim Orinleri Dagim A.§. and Meteks Teknoloji Uriinleri A.S have been
accounted for using the equity method. As of 1 March 2020, the financial stateménts of Neteks [letisim Oriinleri Dagitim
A5, and Neteks Teknoloji Urinleri A.$ have been accounted for using the full consolidation method, In accordance with the
registration on 2.11.2020, our 100% subsidiaries of Neteks [letisim Oranleri Dagitim A $. and Artim Biligim Cozdmleri A5,
hive been controlled by the following acquisition of Neteks Teknoloji Uriinleri Anonim $irketi, our 100%% subsidiary, and
the following acquisition have been made through share transfer in accordance with the anicle numbered 134 and related
articles of the Turkish Commercial Code and the articles numbered 18, 19 and 20 of the Corporate Tax Law No. 5520,

The provision for inventory impairment is recognised m accordance with the increasing percentages on waiting periods of
inventories for merchandise for the periods more than 3 months. As of 31 December 2021, the net realisable value amounted
to TL 64.240,770 in inventories and the remaining portion is carrsed at cost in the consolidated financial statements. (As of
Decembser 31, 2020, net realisable value TL 42034961 )

Explanation December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Cost 2E.343.174 57.807.787
Provision for Value Decrease in Inventorics {24.102.404) {15.772.826)
Net Realizable Value (a) 64.240.770 42.034.961
| Inventory presented with its cost value (b} 919.714.704 467.310.570
Total Inventories (ath) 983.955474 £09.345.531

There are not any inventories given as a guarantee for payables.

The information related to the insurance coverage on asscls is dischosed in Nate 22
The inventories recognised as an expense during the period is dischosed in Mote 28,
WOTE 14 BIOLDGICAL ASSETS

Mone.
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NOTE 15 PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME
Short-term prepaid expenses as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2000 are a3 follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Prepaid Expenses for Following Months B.164.610 4,980 302
Advances Given for Purchases 32,984 306 16569880
Toial 41.148.906 Eléll,l'!l
Dreferred Incomes as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:
Account Mame [decem ber 31, 2021 Decem ber 31, 2020
Advances Received from Customers 31,844,091 | 2. 753,057
Income for the Following Months 18411211 §9.983 636
Total 221.255.34n 102738673

As of 31 December 2021, the portion for advances received from customers amounted to TL 3.915.564 include advances
recieved from physical and virual airtime meters of Datagate Bilgisayar Malzemelerd A%

As of 31 December 2020, the partion for advances received from customers amounted to TL 1.561.359 include advances
recieved from physical and virtual airtime meters of Datagate Bilgisayar Malzemeleri A.5.

The amounts invoiced but not shipped are included in “Income for the Following Months ™.

NOTE 16 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no investments accounted for using the equity method

NOTE 1T INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, investment properties is as follows:

_Accouni Name December 31, 2021 Decembeer 31, 2020
Investment Properties 55.742.575 50.613.789
Total 55 T41.575 SiL613TRY

Movement of investment properties is os follows;

r.iil 21

Cost
Account Name January 1, 2021 Acquisitions  Disposals () Transfers  December 31, 2021
Land 2189431 - - (6000 ) 1.589.431
HuiHing:! 500,354,963 6816252 {60,y 00, 00D STATLZLS
Tuotal £21.544.304 h.016,252 { GO0 - 58.760.646_

Accumulated Depreciation

Curreni Period

Account Name January 1, 2021 Depreciation Disposals Transfers  December 31, 2021
Buildings {1.930.605) (1107 4663 20,000 - (3.018.071)
Total (1930605 {1 1074660 20000 - {3.!]151]‘1'1}
Met Book Value 50,613,789 55.'?'4:_1-575

i3
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As of December 31, 2021, the net amount of investment properties is T 55742575 and investment properties with net book
value of TL 2.765.765 inclede investment properties acquired from Tstanbul and Tekirdag against receivables from dealers
(31 December 2020 TL 3.393,935). The Group Management estimates that the camying value of the buildings in Tekirdag is
approximate to their fair value. The portion amounting to TL 52.976.810 includes the head office of the consolidated
subsidiaries and the Group which is classified in investment properties.

The financial information of depreciation and amortization expenses are recognized is disclosed in Note 30-31.

The financial information of depreciation rates and related procedures of investment properties are disclosed in Note 2.08.16.
The Group has no rental income from investment propertics during the period.

Expenses from investment properties are recognized under operating expenses. (Note 31)
Morigages and title deed restrictions on investment propertics are disclosed in Note 21.

Except from the above mentioned matter, the Group has no resiriction on the mvestmenl propertics of the Group's cash
generated wnits from revenues.

Total insurance coverage on investment properties is disclosed in Note 22.

Degember 31, 2020
Cost
Aceount Name January 1, 2020 Acquisitions Disposals (-} Transfers December 31, J20
Land 1.589.431 0000 . - 7,189,431
Buildings 32.308.53% 15,046,425 - - 50334963
Total 33.497.969 18.646.425 - - 52844394
Agcumulated Depreciation
Current Period
Account Name January 1,2020  Depreciation  Disposals Transfers  December 31, 2020
Baildings (G 6596 (FRT.SHF = = i1.930.605)
Toial (1656} (SR T.000) = = {1,930, 805)
MNet Book Value J1088 173 80,613.789

As of 31 December 2020, the net amouwnt of investment properties is TL 30.613.789 and investment properties with net boek
value of TL 3.393.935 include investment properties acquired from Istanbul and Tekirdag against receivables from dealers
{31 December 2019 TL 2.822.103). The Group Management estimates that the carrying value of the buildings in Tekirdag is
approximate to their fair value. The portion amounting to TL 47.219.854 includes the head office of the consolidated
subsidiaries and the Group which is classified in investment properties.

The financial information of depreciation and amortization expenses are recognized is disclosed in Note 30-31.

The financial information of depreciation rates and related procedures of investment properties are disclosed in Note 2.08.16.
The Group has no rental income from investment propertics during the period,

Expenses from investment properties are recognized under operating expenses. (Mote 31}

Mortgages and title deed restrictions on investment propertics are disclosed in Note 22.
Except from the above mentioned matter, the Group has no restriction on the investment properties of the Group’s cash
generated units from revenies.

Total insurance coverage on investment properties i disclosed in Mote 22

'y
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NOTE 18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, the movements for property, plant and equipment, and related depreciation are as follows:

i3

December 31, 2021
Cost
Currency
Agquisitions Dimposals {-) Translatian
Accouni Name January |, 2021 Differences December 31, 2021
Buildings 20659335 - . . 20.659,335
Flant, Machinery and Equipmend 4,051 829 - - - 4051, 829
hogor Yehicles X 050 067 J 452155 { P2 520 & T 258 M2
Fumiture and Fixhares 14,025,745 1347005 - 1821 .HEs 17,394,158
Leaschold Improvements 8.270.020 147.285 - 34637 5.455.942
Tatal 5055, 5 5076445 {182.520) I RA0O45 57,815,966
Accumulated Depreciation
Curreni Currency
Period Translation
Account Name Jamuary 1, 2021 Depreciation  Disposals Differences Degember 31, 2021
Puildings (891, 1) (413.187) - (1.30:4.351)
Plana, Machinery and Equipment [3.922.4915) {38.733) - F (3.961.648)
MSotor Viehicles (2313.474) (E6E, 213} 1&2.520 - (24999, 16T)
Fumiture and Fixiunes {10,224 565) (1. 5556410 - i1.044 522) {12R25.138)
Leasehold Improvements (6.703.657) {479.957) - {22.346) (7.207.960)
Total (24.038.175) (3.355.731) 182520 (1066 868) (28295 254)
Net Book Value 26.907.821 19.521.711
December 31, 2020
Cost
(*) Additions in Currenty
the Scope of Translation
_Account Name Jamaary I, 2024 Conselidation Acqguisitions  Dhspozals {-) Differences  December 31, 2020
Buildings 20659315 . - . - 200659335
Flany, Machirery amd
Equipment 4,051,429 . . N i 4,051 83
Motor Vehicles 340,625 552 156 (3.203) A 3550067
Furmniture amd Fixtures 11,938,387 2.647 875 L3RRI 2114.032) 194795 14.02%, 745
Leaschold Improvements TR 46,895 629,581 (363350} 35685 £.2T0.020
Tjﬂm -IT.H.L.-IEJ 094,77 2300.547 IJEEIﬁHt 4.5, 565 50965906
Accumulated Depreciation
{*) Additbons in Curremcy
the Scape of Current Period Translation
Account Name January |, 2020 Cossolidation Deprecintion  Disposals Differences  December 31 2020
Biuildings (4TTATR) (413.186) - . (B9 1)
Plant, Machinery amd [38.88T) (1.922.915)
Equipment {3.584.028) - -
Matar Vehicles {1.723,725) (592 463) 3203 (48] (2313.474)
Furnibure amsd Fixiures (H915.459) {1, 98000 Ty (1.217934) 21014122 (235675 (10224 635 )
Leaschold Imgru»mmﬂj 16, 5TH RS0 (424 BB (436,377 Sp8. 370 (29919 :ET{I&.&STI
Total (21.381.041) (2.404.807) (2.698.849) 1681695 (256.083) [24.058.175)
Net Book Value 26,421.363 26.907.821
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{*)0n 28 February 2020, Indcks Bilgisayas's effective ownership interest rate has changed follewing the acquisition of
50,00% shares from Neteks lletigim Uriinleri Dagtim A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Ortinleri A§ and effective ownership
interest rate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of March 31, 2020 and
2018, the financial statements have been accounted for using the equity method.

Other Information.

Depreciation and amortization expenses are included in operafing expenses.

The Group has no mortgage on buildings in property, plant and equipment. Total insurance coverage on property, plant and
equipment is disclosed in Note 22.

As of December 31, 2021 and, December 31, 2020 the movements for right of use assels, and related depreciation are as
follows:

December 31, 2031
Lost
Currenty
Tramslation Disposals!i=)
Account Name January 1, 2021 Agguisitions Differences  /Contract Costs December 31, 2021
Buildings B SO0 | 20 147737 - - 18461857
Motor Vehicles 7.338.834 2.055.402 1.168.203 (1.833.993) B.T2R444
Tuatal 1431895 LEIT.1M 1.168.203 {1.531.995) 27,190,301
Currency
Current Period Translation Disposals!i=)
Account Name Jamaary 1, 2021 Depreciation Differences {Contract Costs December 31, 2021
Buildings {6.368.111) 13.915.086) s . (10.283.197)
Motor Viehicles (2.774.664] (3342001} (340,576} AR R19 (3.073 4270
Total [ 142.777) (7.237.000) {540.576) ARNE1S (12.456.624)
Net Book Value 15.186.177 11733677
Degemberd |, 2020
Cost
*3
Additions in Currency  Disposalsi-)
the Seope of  Acquisiti Translation {Cantrasi hecemberdl.
Account Name January 1,2020 “onsolidation BN Disposals Drifferemcis Costs zai0
Baildings 15205286 31195 1752639 - - 16,941 20
_Mosor Vehicles 5.102.315 A 500 3722391  (2.333.023) 255640 - T35 H34
Total 0307601 SI6T4 5474932 (2.225.913) 255,640 " 24328954
{*) Additkoms in Current Currengy Disposalsi-)
Januoary 1, ihe Scape of Ferbod Translation  [Comiract Decemiber 21,
Accomni Nameg zn  Consolidation ation  Differemces Caosts 2020
Bauildings (2942.2113) (55019 - (142037 - - (6,368, 101
Motor Wehicles (0. T04.927) (178.877) = (2.A38.529) (L) 443} |0 10 {2774 666)
Tatal {4,647, 140) (184 306) . (6058, 908) (161443} 1309, 110 (9.142.777)
Net Book Value  15.660.461 15186177
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NOTE 19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Other intangible assets comprise of an masterpieces and the Giroup managem:ent determined that related assets are classified
in intangible assets, Art masterpieces are not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful life.

December 31, 2021

Loxt
Currency
Translation

Accounnl Name January 1, 2021 Acquisitions IMaposalks Iifferences Decembrer 3, 2021

Rights 23.536.804 185,756 - 110,842 2RI 492
Other [ntangible Assets 155811 - = - 155810

Tatal 25,692, T05 185,756 - 1.106.841 24.985.303
Accumulated Depreciation

Currency
Curreni Perbod Transkation

Account Mame January 1, 2021 Depreciation Dispoiaks INifferences December 31, 2031

Rights (7.950.421) (5.832.847) = {395.730) (14.178.598)

CHher Intangible Assets {35384} - - - (35.384)

Tuotal {7.985.805) (5.432.847) . (395.730) (14.214.382)
Net Book Value 15.706.900 10.770.921

Other intangible assets comprise of an masterpieces. Art masterpieces are not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite
wseful life.

December 31. 2020
Lost
{*) Additkons Currency
January in the Scope of Translation
Account Name 1,200 Consolidation_Acquisitions Disposals Transfers Differences December 31, 2020
Rights (*} 4.905.758 1103640 16820169 (236.146) AR T 485 246,987 23,536,854
B43.297
Cither | I Azzels - - - [(GRT.A%6) - 135811
Toinl £.749. 655 1. 103640 16829169 i!‘.]iu (E1T] - 246087 1169708
Accumylated Depreciation
(*) Additions in Curreni Currency
Janwary  the Scope of Period Translation
Aceount Namo 1203 Conselidstion  Depreciation Dhispasals Transfers Differemces  December 31, 2020
Righis (1.935.144) (140.756)  (5497214) 136143  (301.584) (91.856) {7.950.421)
“Other Intangible Assels (301584} = (35.384) - 1i.5%4 - (35.384)
Total {2.256. 340,756 . 136143 = (1. 856) (7.985.805)
et Book Value 3492527 15,706 %0

{*30n 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rue has changed following the acquisition of
50),00% shares from Neteks [letisim Urinleri Dagim A.§. and Neteks Teknoloji Urinleri A5 and effective ownership
interest rale increased from 50,00% 1o 100% with the additicnal acquisition of share purchase. As of 31 December 2021 and
3020, the financial statements of Neseks lletisim Urtnleri Dagditim A5, and Neteks Teknoloji Urainleri A5 have been
accounted for using the equity method.

Other intangible assets comprise of ant masterpicces. Art masterpieces are not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite
useful life..

Depreciation and amonization expenses are included in operating expenses.
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ﬂmﬂ'nﬁ-‘ﬂjﬂﬂm-" 71"} umiesy oebernise maficarned §

Account Name Diecember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Goodwill 1.897.69% 1.897.699
Total 1.897.699 1.597.699

NOTE 20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Employee Benefit obligations as of December 31,2021 and December 31,2020 are as follows:

_Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Payables 1o Personnel 114.950 21.072
Social Security Payables 1.135.025 975,083
Total 1,250,015 096,155

NOTE 21 GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Mome.

NOTE 22 PROYISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
. "

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Pravizions for Price Differences 92.122.180 42281.787
Prowvision for Lawsuits 107,757 128446
Total 92.129.937 42,410,233
Provision for Provisions for Price
Decem ber 31, 2021 Lawsuits Differences Taotal
Beginning of the Period - 1 Jamuary |25 4d5 42.381.787 42,410,233
Additional Provisions 37.352 02, 1x2.180 2,150,532
Payments During the Period - (42.281.787) {42.281.787)
_Reversal of Provisions (58010 - (SH.041)
_End of the period 107.757 92.122.180 93,110,937
Provision for Provisions for Price
December 31, 2020 Lawsuits Differences Total
Beginning of the Period - 1 Januwary 258291 49.288.293 49,546,584
Additional Provisions - 42.281.787 43281787
Payments During the Period - (49 288.293) (49.288.293)
Reversal of Provisions [129.845) ' (129 845)
End of the period 128.446 42.281.787 42.410.233

Price difference invoices are obtained from customers for products sold at different prices for the prior peried and provisions
are disclosed in the consolidated financial staternents during the period. In addition, for increasing the sales, customers has
the direct sales target and for achieving the given targets, invoices such &s umover premium, credit note, price difference are
obtained from the dealers and related provisions are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements during the peried.

Contimgenl . di

December 31, 2031

As of 31 December 2021, the provisions for lawsuits amounted to TL 107.757 filed against the Group and the related
provisions are reflected in to the consolidated financial statements. Provision for kawsuits comprise of case law in the arcas
of customs and duties.
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December 31, 2020

As of 31 December 2020, the provisions for lawsuits amounted to TL 12%.446 filed against the Group and the related
provisions are reflected in to the consolidated financial statements. Provision for lawsuits comprise of case law in the areas
of customs and duties.

In accordance with TFRS 9, execution proceedings amounted 1o TL 39,340,860 for proviskons for dowbtful receivables of the
Group and the related provisions are reflected in to the consoliduted financial statements. (31.12.2020: TL 30.925.364)

Commitments, movigages and guarantees not included in the Habiligy:
December 31, 2021
TL USD EURO
“Bill of Guarantees Given ERITEIT 16563000 -
Letters of Guarantee Given 272451030 13,000,000 1 201, WM
Total 145800344 19865000 1200000
December 31, 2020
TL LUSD EURO
Bill of Guarantees Given 48234474 5.265.000 -
Letiers of Guaramtee Given 273,007,677 13000004 1350000
Total 421.242.151 18.265.000 1. 350,000

Letters of guarantee given include letters given to some public institutions and domestic and foreign suppliers from which
the purchase of the Group is made. Letters of guarantee are in the nature of debts arising from purchase of goods. The Group
has no cashoutflow of funds for the letters of guarantee since the debts related 1o the purchase of goods are paid on their due
date

Degember 31, 2021
Type of Insured Asset USD TL
Merchandise 92 (e, 000 -
blotor Wehicles - 140953040
Plant, Machinery and Equiprment 23, (e B.6TR.652
Buildings - 14,500,000
Total 92,025.000 37.273.952

Decomber 31, 2020
Type of Insured Asset Ush TL
Merchandise B0, (00, 000 -
Motor Vehicles - 7854367
Plant, Machinery and Equipment 25.000 7.098.652
Buildings - 8500000
Total §9.025.000 23453019

Additional disclosures for receivables insurance from trade receivables are disclosed in Mote 10

The ahove mention ameunts include the ceiling amount for the merchandise of the Group. The amount of the premium is
equal to the average amount of the merchandise, provided that the above ceiling amount does not exceed. The premium base
cannot be less than 40% of the ceiling amount.

EL




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAY VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED PECEMBER 31, 2021
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oBairral, Pledge, Moripages Glves by il Griap 311t 1, 1031 ber 31, B0 31, 2020
{arfends Amsunk TL Equivalmi Curressy Amsani TL Equbvaleni

& Tosal senasst off CPACe given i ke nome off its osm kagal

persanaliny - A TR TS - 15d L0 BT
Laters ol Crmararree (8501 FEL T2 559 000 1.E 00 (Y FE 406 50
Lt af {iwerymier (ET R 1. ) ) [EREA [ 13 M A
[ sy o Lwaramtad (110 2TLANT G 7L L5 030 ST AETT TR OTETT
Lot anal Norew of Cwroted (T14 .
Pledge .
Miartgespes (LY - - -

copaolidaicd companies . FALST.A0 - L8 8822007
Bt af Cimarumarey (125TH LA el B ¥ M5 0o AT TAY
quﬁrm‘lh
Bill of (Fesramieen (1) TE R A T3 [48 254474 48 25T

© Total amound ol CPRA's given on bekalf of thind parsss for

prdinary cowes of PUBmes = a

D Total amsousi of oy CTW 8 piaoea - -
i Totsd ol of CPM's given on belall of the maponty

sharchalde =
. Tostal samvoumt of CT7 8 pivies 1o oa behall of otier

companies which are not in scope of Haed C - - -
i, Total sevosant of CPAw grveen oo Bebiall of rird partics

wiich are nol i soope of C c 1 "

Trtmd - FELTTL )Y = SETATT.OMY

The ratio of other CPM given by the Group to the equity is 0a: (31 December 2020: (%4)
NOTE 23 COMMITMENTS
None.

NOTE 24 LONG TERM PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
_Provision for Employment Termination Benefits 11.962.789 8.780.940
Total 11.962.789 §.780.940

Under Turkish Labour Law, Indeks and its Subsidiaries are required to pay termination benefis to each employee who has
completed one vear of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, who is called up for military service,
dies or retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women) and reaches the retirement age (38 for women and
600 fior men).

As of | January 2021, the amount payable consists of one month's salary limited to a maximem of TL 10.848,59 (31
December 2020: TL 7.638,96) for cach vear of service,

The liability is not funded as there is no funding requirement.

The provision has been caleulated by estimating the present value of the future probable cbligation of the Group arising from
the retirement of the employees. TAS 19 (“Employee Benefits*) requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to
estimate the enterprise’s obligation under defined benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions are used in
the caleutation of total liabilitkes:
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The principal assumption is that the maximum liahility for ench year of service will increase in line with inflation, Thus, the
discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated effects of fusure inflation. As of 31
December 2021, the provisions in the accompanying consolidated financial staternents are calculated by estimating the
present value of the future probable obligation of the Group arising from the retirement of the employees. As of the 31
December 2021, the provisions a1 the respective balance sheet dates have been calculated assuming an annual inflation rate
of 1 7% and an interest rate of 21%, resulting in a real discount rate of 3.42%. (31 December 2020: 3.69 real discount rate).

As of the 31 December 2021, turnover rate to estimate the probability of retirement is 06 E8%. (31 December 2020: 96,95%)

The principal actuarial assumptions misde by the Group regarding the real discount rates are reviewed in each balance sheet
date,

January 1, 2021 January 1, 2020

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Balance at January | 8780940 7270394
Additions in the Scope of Consolidation () - T
Current Period Service Cost 1.070.024 B4, 189
Actuarial Gains / Losses B05.270 [ 10.485)
Inverest Cost [.B43 598 TR T
Payment/Reduction of Benefits /Loss dus 10 Dismissal 03440 AIERI0

ing the Period (-) {1,231.483) (1.137.637)

“End of the Period 11.962.789 8.780.940

{(*)0n 28 February 2020, Indeks E!il%iu}-u's sffective ownership interest rate has changed following the aequisition of

50,00% shares from Neteks [letigim

rinleri Dagmm A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Oriinleri AS and effective ownership
nterest rate increased from S0,00% to 100% with the additional aequisi

tion of share purchase. On 28 February 2020, Indeks
Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of 50,

(0% shares from Neteks [letisim

Oriknleri Dagitim A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji Urtinleri A5 and effective ownership interest rate increased from 50,00% 1o
100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of | March 2020, the financial statements of Neteks [letiim
{lriinleri Dagmim A.S. and Neteks Teknoloji [lrinleri A5 have been accounted for using the full consolidation method. In
accordance with the registration on 2.11,2020, our 100%s subsidiarses of Neteks letisim Urtinleri Dagim A.S. and Artim
Bilisim Cozimleri A.S, have been controlled by the following acquisition of Neteks Teknoboji Urinberi Anonim Sirketi, our
100% subsidiary, and the following acquisition have been made through share transfer in accordance with the article
numbered 134 and related articles of the Turkish Commercial Code and the articles numbered 18, 19 and 20 of the Corporate
Tax Laow Mo, 5520,

Provision for employment termination benelits are recognized under operating expenses.

In accordance with the TAS 19 entered into force as of 1 January 2013, actuarial gains and losses initially recognized in
equity as other comprehensive income.

Provision for employment termination beneits recognised during the period is as follows:

January 1, 2021 January 1, 2020

December 31, 2021 | December 31, 2020

Gieneral Administrative and Marketing Expenses {3.517.462) (2.385.895)
Other Operating Income - 2
Income / (Expense) Recognised in Profit or Loss (3.517.462) {2.385.808
| Actuarial Gains/Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income {805,270} 10486

Profit / (Loss) for the Period (4.413.332) (2.375.400)
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| January 1,2021 | January 1, 2020
December 31, 2021 | December 31, 2020

Actuarial Gains/Losses Recognized in Cther Comprehensive Income {&95.870) 10.486
Tax Effect 20%% 179.174 (2.087)
Total {716.696) 8.389

The actuarial gain recognized in the current pericd is TL 895870, Wei other comprehensive income is amounted to TL
716,696 as a result of the recognition of deferred income tax cormesponding 1o the amount in other comprehensive income /
expense. The actuarial gains/losses from to investments accounted for using the equity method and non controlling interests
which is presented in the statement of other comprehensive income as TL 59.671.

The sctuarial gain recognized in the previous period is TL 10.486. Net other comprehensive income is amounted 1o TL 8.389
a5 a result of the recognition of deferred income tax corresponding to the amount i other comprehensive income | expense.
The actuarial gainsflosses from to investments accounted for using the equity method and non controlling interests, after
adding TL 60.975, which is presented in the statement of other comprehensive income as TL 69.364.

NOTE 25 CURRENT PERIOD TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As of 31 Decernber 2020 and 2020, tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
_Prepaid Taxes 16,467 44.327
Total 16,467 44.327

MOTE 26 OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, other current assets is as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Credit Note Income Accruals 63.749.354 15.194.676
Deferred WAT $5.340.381 45328.326
Business Cash Advances 1.121.453 1.002.275
Total 120.217.190 61.525.277

As of December 31, 2021, the Group has no other liabilities.

NOTE 27 EQUITY
i) Mon Controlling Interests

Jnmuary 1, 2021 January 1, 2020
Apcount Mame December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Balanee at January | 110_864 433 128.648.181
CGiaineLosses on Non Controlling Interssis 33.951.216 23.156.752
Business Combinations Under Common Control - (40920 ddd)
Gains/Losses on Minority Interests (59.671) (20.056)
Total 144, THS.978 110,864,433

i) Capital / Capital Adjustments Due to Cross Ownership / Repurchased Shares

The capital of the Group has 224.000.000 shares with a nominal value of TL | and issued capital of the Group iz TL
224.000.000. The capital of the Group is TL 224.000.000 which inchsde Class A shares amounting to TL 1.272,72 and Class
B shares amounting to TL 223.998.727.28.

(lass A shares have concessions to determine more than half of the members of the board of directors and 1o get 5% of the
remaining profit afier the first legal reserve and the first dividend to shareholders are set aside.
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At the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of Indeks held on 23 May 2019, the valid period of the Registered Capital Ceiling
will be extended 1o 2019-2023 and the registered capital ceiling will be increased from TL. 150,000,000 (Hundred and Fifty
Million} to TL 300,000,000 (Three Hundred Million). The amendment of article 6 of the anticles of association was registered
by the Istanbul Trade Registry Office on 7 June 2019.

The paid in share capital of the Group presented in the consolidated balance sheet is the Group's paid in share capital; paid-
in share eapital of subsidiaries in the consolidated balance sheet has becn eliminated accordingly with the subsidiaries
balances.

December 31, 2021 December 31, 20200

Shareholding Sharcholding Sharcholding Sharcholding
Shareholder Rate % Amonni Rate % Amount
Mevres Erol Bilecik (*) %0 32,31 T1I78.584 8. 36,37 200,369 646
Deshil A5, %2 7,79 I7.439.535 - -
Public Shares 8% 57,53 125872061 Yo 61,26 34302899
Other %237 5.309.820 942,37 1.327.455
Total i 11 224,000, 000 %o 1IH) Sy DD, 00D

1 The witimate controfiing party of the Group is Nevees Erol Bilecik and his family members, The toral sharehalding rafe
of Nevres Ercl Bilecik including Desbil A5 share (N. Erol Bilecik has 2600 of shares) of s 40.10%.

In sccordance with decision of board dated 03.03.2021 and numbered 2021/03 issued capital has arisen from 36.000.000 TL
10 224.000.000 TL on the condition that the upper limit of registered capital 300.000.000 TL of companies where the
registered capital system is accepted. The arisen amount |68.000.000 TL has afforded from extraordinary reserves which
announced by capital market board on 08.04.2021 and 2021119 weekly bulletin and registered-announced by Istanbul
Commerce Registership on 19.04.2021.

i) Capital Heserves
Mone.

iv) Aceumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses not to be Reclassified in Profit or Loss
The analysis of accumulated other comprehensive income or expenses not to be reclassified in profit or loss is as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Beginming of the Perlod — 1 Jawuary (L ITE9ST) (1.208.377)
Acraria Gains and (Losses) (Yaie 24) (R0, 570 10488
Tux Effect fNote 24, Nore 35) 179074 (2007

Actwarial Gatns and fLozses) an Non Controlling Inferests /
Share of other comprehensive income {expenses) of

frvesiments accownted for using the equity method J9.471 81031

Actuarial Gaing and {Losses) (Met) (1.775.982) (1.118.957)

Gains/{losses) on Remeasurements of Defined Benefit

Flans {(1.775.982) (1.118.957})
_Other Gains and Losses - =

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses
not to be Reclassified in Profit or Loss (1.775.981) (1.118.957)
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(v} Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be Reclassified in Profit or Loss

Movement of currency translation differences is as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Balznce at Jamuary | 23 252577 15.377.058
Grains / (Losses) 41,590,684 T.875.530
End of the Period 64.843.261 23250577

The Group has no gainsi{losses) on cash flow hedges.

vi} Restricied Reserves from Retained Earnings

Legal reserves consist of first and second reserves as stipatated in the Turkish Commercial Code. According to Article 519 of
the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC™), the general legal reserve is allocated as 5% of the annual profit until it reaches 20%
of the Group's paid-in capital, After reaching this limit. |0%% of the total amount will be added to the general legal reserves
after the dividend payment is paid to the sharcholders. According to the Turkish Commercial Code, if the general legal reserve
does not exceed 50% of the share capital or the issued capital, it can be used only to chose the losses, to continue the business
when business is not going well or 1o take measures o mitigate the results.

vii) Retained Earnings
Legal reserves consist of first and second reserves as stipulated in the Turkish Commercial Code.

Publicly traded companies have special provision regarding to dividend distribution policy in accordance with the Article 19
of the Capital Market Law No. 6362 and the “Communiqué on Dividends” No. 11-19.1 of the Capital Markets Board, which
entered into force as of 1 February 2014, In accordance with the Communiqué, corporations have no dividend distribution
obligation for shareholders whose shares are traded on the stock exchange and corporations dissribute their profits by
decisions of the general assembly of sharcholders within the frame of their dividend distribution policies to be determined
by the general assembly of sharehobders and in accordance with provisions of the applicable laws and regulations, In addition,
publicly traded companies may distribute dividend advances in cash over their profits shown in their interim period financial
statements.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, equity ftems is as follows:

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Paid in Share Capital 224 0. 000 56,000,000
Adjustment to Share Capital 1.064.323 1064323
Repurchased Shares () (4.979.617) (1.705.805)
Share Premium 156607 | 56,607
Business Combinations Under Common Control (11.913.128) (11.913.128)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Or Expenses nol
to Be Reclassified In Profit Or Loss {1.775.982) (1.118.957)

- Gains/(Loxses) on Remeaswrements of Defined Benefit
Plans (1.775.982) (1.118.937)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses 10 be
Reclassified in Profit or Loss 64845261 23.252.577
- Currency Translation Differences 64843 261 23252 57T
Restricted Reserves from Retained Eamings 46.315.798 35.670.642
- Legal Reserves 45.168.748 34,523,592
- Gains on Sale of Interest in a Subsidiary Exemp from
Corporare Tax 1147050 I 147.050
Retained Eamings 227417678 311.313.750
Met Profit for the Period 403 037.567 [43.345.753
Equity Holders of the Parent 48, 166,507 £56,065.T62
MNon Controlling Interests 144.785.978 110.864.433
Total Equity 1.091.952.485 666930195
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In the event of reacquisition of equity based financial instruments,
loss has not been reflected in profit or loss due to its purchase, sale,
accounted for directly deducted from equity. The nominal vilue of repurc
and all of the above mentioned shares were sold amoun
reflected in profit or loss due to the repurchase of these shares and the sal
TL 156607 arising from repurchised shares was reco
comprise of parent company’s shares amounting to TL 4.4%9.293,

ting to TL T90.897 on 21 F

“Repurchased Shares™ are deducted from equity; gain or
issue or reversal. The amounts received or paid are
hased shares in 2013 is amounting o TL 162.402,
cbruary 2018. Gain o loss has not been
¢ of the repurchased shares. Net gain amounting 1o
rded in Share Premium. As of 31 December 2021, repurchased shares
and repurchase of Datagate A.$'s own shares which is

the subsidiary of the Group, Non controlling inlerésis arce deducted from the amount resulting from Datagate A.5's repurchase

of its own shares.

In accordance with the declaration of CMB dated 25 February 2005 and numbered 7242,
to CMB regulations should distribute their prafit

regulations at the minimum level set by the CMB if

financial statements. 1f the minimum distributable profit
profit in the statutory financial statements should be distribeted. 1F the
statements prepared in accordance with CMB regulations or the statatory

should be made.

NOTE 28 SALES AND COST OF SALES

Sales and cost of sales for the periods ended December 31, 2021

stated in the financial statements prepased
such minimum distributable profit is covered by the profit in the statulory
is not covered by the profit in the statutory fnancial statements, all
net result for the period in either of the financial
financial statements is hoss, no profit distribution

Januvary 1, 2021

the companics which are subject
in accordance with CMB

and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Janaary 1, 2020

Account Name December 31, 2021 Decem ber 31, 2020
Domestic Sales 13.141.012.766 10208, 146,991
Foreign Sales 110601152 101 492789
Oither Sales 52045918 47 332585
Sales Retums (=) (186.508.188) (184.267.074)
Sales Discounts (=) (26474 T85) (17.685.269)
Mel Sales 13.091,.57T6.863 10.255.020.021
Cpst of Goods Sold (-} {ilg_:j._-‘d.l'}.'.l"l'd} 9.869.318.232)
Gruaj_]’rul'll E48,T57.089 3RS 70179

NOTE 29 RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, MARKETING, SALES & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES AND

GENEREAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

The Operational Expenses for the periods ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

Jamuary 1, 2021 January 1, 2020

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
General Administration Expenses (=) {91.309.272) (75.284.585)
_Marketing, Sales & Distribution Expenses (-) (65.374.406}) (53.883.976)
Total Operating Expenses {156.683.678) {129.170.861)
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NOTE 30 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses By Nature of the Company for the periods ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

January 1, 2021 Junuary 1, 2020
_Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Marketing, Sales and Distribution Expenses and
General Adminisirative Expenses (-} (156.683.678) (129.170.561)
« Personnel Expenses {THADE.0T0) (635.730.502)
. Deprecintion and Amortisation Charges (17.553.134) (15278.274)
- Insurance Expenses (17.021.978) (9.280.316)
- Transportation, Distribution and Storage Expenses (9.995.259) (8.152.928)
- Provision for Doubtful Receivables (8.415.496) (4.096.793)
- Outsourcing Expenses (Office Supplies) (4.744.028) (4.153.831)
- Provision for Employment Termination Benefits (3.517.462) (2.385.893)
- Mainfenance and repair expenses {3.378.618) (2.702.721)
- Consultancy and Audit Expenses {3.197.684) (3.258.318)
- Motor Wehiche Expenses (3,004,247} (2187947}
- Representation and Hospitality Expenses (30483820 (4.138.656)
« Advertiserment and Promotion Expenses (2.038.748) (1.300.391)
- Sales and International Trade Costs {1.572.039) (973.059)
- Taxes, Duties and Changes (925 040% (3.848.248)
= Other Expenses (1.773.495) {1.681.622)
Total Operating Ex {156.683.678) (129.170.561)

Depreciation and amortization expenses and personnel expenses are included in operating expenses.

Fees for Services Received from Independent Auditor/ Independent Audit Firms for the periods ended December 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020 are & follows:

The Group's explanation regarding the fees for the services received from the independent audit firms, which is based on the
letter of POA dated August 19, 2021, the preparation principles of which are based on the Board Decision published in the
Official Gazette on March 30, 2021, are as follows:

January 1, 2021- January 1, 2020-

_Account Name December 31, 2021 Decem ber 31, 2020
Audit and assurance fee 71.000 47.500
Tax consulting fee % '
Other assurance services fee 15.0400 320000
Other service fee apan from audit - -
Total 846000 T9 500
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NOTE 31 OTHER OPERATING INCOME / EXPENSE
hher income / expense for the periods ended December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 are as follows:

January 1, 2021 January 1, 2020

Aceount Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Other Operating Income 677.359.790 189.857.159
Provisions No Longer Required (Lawsuils) H0.680 -
[nterest Eliminated from Sales 153.286.009 9 868 566
Interest and Rediscount Income 23800955 I 1434022
Foreign Exchange Gains (Trade Receivables and Payables) S04, 200103 153 409564
Orther Income and Profits 51.034 145.007
Other Operating Expenses (-) (518.441.023) (200, 776.27T)
Interest Eliminated from Purchases (95.396.099) {50,040 1.345)
Interest and Rediscount Expenses (25,534 4000 (17.847.798)
Foreign Exchange Losses (Trade Receivables and Payables) (396.417.234) {120,927 506)
Other Expenses and Losses (-} {1.093.290) {2.909.628)
Other Operating Income /| Expenses {Net) 158.918.767 R0.080,852

NOTE 32 GAINS/ (LOSSES) FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITES AND INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD

As of December 11 2021 and 2020, gains and losses from mvestment activithes is as follows:

January 1, 2021 January 1, 20240
Account Name December 31, 2021 Decem ber 31, 2020
Gains from Investment Activites 1,034,408 £0.488
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 1,034 408 -
Dividend Income - =
Orther - S0L48%
_Lasses from Investment Activities (-) - -
Ciher Gains | Loswes {(Net) 1034, 408 L0, 483
January 1, 2021 January 1, 2020
Aecount Name December 31, 2021 Diecember 31, 2020
Gains/Losses on Investments Accounted for Using
the Equity Method = (1.294.086)
" Other Gains / Losses (Net) - (1.294.086)

(*1 On 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of
50,00 shares from Meteks lletisim Oranleri Dagmm A5, and Neteks Teknolodi Urtinleri A% and effective ownership
intercst rate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. The corresponding amounts
to the Group's share of the profit / loss until 29 February 2020 are as Follows:

The related information is disclosed in Note 17.

a7




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED I8 TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

SOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, Z0Z1
{dmganis sing axpressed i (1T, ) wnless amenrise mmdicanid |

NOTE 33 FINANCIAL INCOME / EXPENSE

Ag of 31 December 2021 and 2020, financial income is as follows:

January 1, 2021 January 1, 2020
Account Name December 31, 2021 _December 31, 2020
Interest Income 20.002.167 13.155.085
Foreign Exchange Gains 209.843.640 80.920.981
Total Financial Ineome 319.845.807 94.07 6.6

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, financial expenses is as follows:

Jamuary 1, 2021 January 1, 2020
Accounl Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Bank Charges and Interest Expenses (204 837 8T3) (113.331.322)
Foreign Exchange Losses (52070240} (990,993, 4445
Total Financial Expenses (256.908.113) (213.324.766)

The Group has no capitalised financing costs during the period,

NOTE 34 FIXED ASSETS HELD FOR SALE PURPOSES AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Mone.
NOTE 35 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group's tax expense (or income) consists of current period's corporate tax expense and deferred tax expense (or income).

Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current Income Tax Liabilitics [66.714. T80 50381546
Prepaid Taxes (-) (47.428.434) (37.279.925)
Current income tax linbilities (net) 119.286.346 22.101.621
As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
Account Mame January 1, 2021 Januwary 1, 2020
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current Period Tax Expense (<) (166.714.780) (59.381.546)
Deferred Income Tax | (Expense) (28.230.717) Thd 238
Total Tax Income [ (Expense) (194,945.49T) (58.617.308)
Account Name December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities at the Beginning
of the Period 24.213.640 14187963
Additions in the Scope of Consolidation (*) - 7.228.330
Actuarial Gains/Losses 179.174 (2.097)
Currency Transtation Differences 7571873 2055206
Deferred Income Tax | (Expense) (28230717} T64.238
Deferred Tax Assets/Liabilitics at the End of
the Period 3.734.975 24.213.640
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{(*10n 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the acquisition of
$0,00% shares from Neteks [betigim %rﬁnl-:rl Dagiem A-S. and Netcks Teknoloji Urinberi A5 and effective ownership
interest rate increased from $0,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. As of 31 December 2020 and
018, the financial siatements of Neteks [hetisim Urtinleri Dagtim A%, and Neteks Teknoloji Urimleri A5 have been
accounted for using the equity method. As of 21 December 2020, the financial statements are accounted for using the full
consolidation method.

i) Current Period Statutory Tax Provision

Advance tax in Turkey is calculated and accrued on a quarterly basis, The corporation tax rate is 25% in Turkey in 2021
(2020: 22%). Corporation tax is payable on the toal income of the Group after adjusting for certain disallowable expenses,
income not subject to tax and allowances.

The corporate tax rate has been determined as 23% for 2021 and 23% for 2022 with the law numbered 7316 dated April 15,
2021, and it has been stated that the application will be applied as of the provisional corporate tax returns to be declared after
| July 2021.

According to Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offsel the future taxable income for a
enaximum period of § vears. On the other hand, such losses cannot be carried back to offset prior years profits.

Pursuant to Article 24 of the Corporae Tax Law No. 5520, the corporate tax retum is kevied upon the declartion of the
taxpayer. There is no clear and definitive agreement on tax assessment procedures in Turkey. Pursuant o Article 25 of
the Corporate Tax Law No. 5520, corperations prepare and decbare their tax retums from the first day of the fourth month
1o the cvening of the twenty-fifih day of the fourth month following the end of the accounting period for their annual
earnings. It is possible to carry out an inspection by the Tax Administration within the S-year statute of limitations
starting from the following accounting period.

Income Withholding Ta:

In addition 1o the corporate tax, it is required to calculate income tax withholding on any dividends, except for those
distributed 1o all txpayer entities and Turkish branches of forcign companies gaining dividend for such distribution and
declaring these dividends within the corporate profit. The rate of income withholding tax implemented as 10% between 24
April 2003 and 22 July 2006. The rate of withholding tax has been increased from 1% to 15% upon the Cabinet decision
Mo: 200610731, which was published in Official Gazette on July 23, 2006.

i) Deferred T

The Group’s tax basis with the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with Turkish Financial Reporing
Standards arising from differences between the consolidated financial statements for temporary differences and deferred tax
assets and liabilities are accounted for published by POA. These differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and
expenses in different reporting periods for tax purposes and for the purposes of the POA and disclosed below.

Temporary differences are result of recognizing certain income and expense items differently for accounting and tax
purposes. Temporary differences are calculated off of the tangible assets {except land), intangible asscts, inventories, the
revaluation of prepaid expenses, discount of receivables, provision for severance payments, and prior years losses. Every
accounting vear, the Group reviews the deferred tax asset and in circumstances, where the deferred tax asscts cannot be wsed
against the future taxable income, the Group writes-off the recognized deferred tax asset.

the taxation periods of the companies for 2018 - 2020 (Financial periods starting in the relevant vear for the companies
designated as special financial period) will be applied at a rate of 22% for corporate incomes, With the article 11 of the “Law
an the Collection of Public Claims and Amendments to Some Laws™ dated 15 April 2021 and numbered 7316, the taccation
periadds of the companies for 2021 (financial perieds starting in the relevant year for the companies designated as a special
financial period) will be applied at a rate of 25% for corporate incomes and 23% for 2022, During the calculation of deferred
tax assets and liabilities, the tax rates of the periods estimated by the Company 1o recover the book value of its assets or setthe
liabilities as of the dmte of the statement of financial position are taken into account.
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December 31, 2021 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 20E0

Cumulative Temporary Deferred Tax Cumulative Deferred Tax
Account Namie Dvifferences Assets/{Liabilitics) Temporary Differences Linbilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment (6.857.012) (1.371.402) (5.7R4.402) {1.1%6,880)
and Ieiangible Assets
Bediscount Expenses T3, 540,004 16.914.215% 34.818.663 10563,735
Provisson for Employment 11592, 783 2.392.557 B 7R0.942 1.750. 2R
Terminstbon Benefits
Provision for Inventory 24,102 404 E541.553 15772826 30154563
[mpaimment
“abuation Difference on MNotes (B315.8H) (1912187} (b0 120} (R0E. 424
Pavahle
Derivative Instruments {42950 686} (R ATHGSR) 27.721.631 354432
Fmamoe Lass = - 2144128 4,292 826
Other (34.578.709) (7.953.103) 2336531 467306
Deferred Tax
Assets | (Linbilities), Net 3734078 24.213.640

NOTE 36 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Eamings per share disclosed in the consolidated profit or loss and other comprehensive income is determined by dividing the
net income by the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the relevant period,

In accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard (“TAS”) numbered 33 “Eaming Per Share” paragraph numbered 64
Retrospective Adjustments, amount of calculated eamings per share was adjusted retrospectively by the Group due to capital

increase through bonus issues.

Mumber of total shares and calculation of eamings per share at | January — 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Januwary 1, 2021

January 1, 2020

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Prafit for the Period 403.037.567 143.345.753
Weighted Average Number of Shares 224,000,004 224000, 000
Earnings Per Share 1. T992TS 639036
Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 15.833.71 563147
Profit attributable to non-controlling inerests 1708321 0,6079:43
NOTE 37 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Reloted parties balances are as follows:

Receivables s Pavahles

Trade  Non-Trade Trade Mon-Trade
DH.'E;I!LI:TSI, iz Receivables  Heceivables Receivables Receivahles
Homend A.5. 29 = - .
Deshal AS. i.08% - 828 -
Total 1.118 - 96,828 -

Receivables Payables

Trade  Mon-Trade Trade Mon-Trade
December 31, 2020 Receivables  Receivables Receivables Receivahles
Homend A5, - -
Dheshil AS, 83.173
Total 83.173 -
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The receivables and payables from related parties are not include collateral. The provision for doubtful receivables has not
been calculated and reflected to the consolidated financial statements for the related parties. Neteks Dig Ticaret A.§. , Desbil,
Despec ve Homend are other related parties of the Group.

The current account balances between the parties are generally caused by the finance cperations. However, in some cases,
there may akso be cash dishursements among intercompany transactions. The balances due to non finance operations are
classified as other pavables or receivables. The bank operates interest for current account balances and is invoiced on a
quarterly basis. The Group has interest gains on USD, EUR and TL for the account balances during the period. and the
effective annual interest in 2021 is USD 3,15 % - 6,50 % and EUR 3,00 % - 5.00% and TL 18,00 % - 23,00¢%. (31 December
2020: (2,65% - 7.00%) (2.50% - 5,50%) and (8.75% - 21,00%) respectively.

Related parties transactions are as follows:
Janwary 1, 2021-December 31, 2021

Sales to Related Sales of Goods General Expense Interest and Foreign
Parties and Services Allocation Exchange Income  Total Income / Sales
Desbil A5. - 11.0m - 11071
Homend 4.5 - 2 Db - 2.0
Total = 13.071 - 13.071

Purchases from Helated Porchases of Goods  General Expense Imierest and Foreign  Total Expenses

Parties and Services Allocation Exchange Expense Purchases
_Deshil A.S. - 948.203 - 948.203
Total - 948.203 - 048.203

January 1, 2020 - December 31, 2020

Sabes to Related Sales of Goods General Expense Interest and Forelgn
Parties and Services Allocation Exchange Income  Total Income / Sales
Dreshil A5, - 9.900 11.055 20.955
Homend A%, 205.622 51.057 174.121 428 Bl
MNeteks Dubai(™*) 133425 - - 33425
MNeteks Teknoloji (*) B.648.831 .424.01% 16963 10089815
Total ___B.985.878 1486626 202.141 10.674.645

Purchases from Related Purchases of Goods  General Expense  Imterest and Foreign ~ Total Expenses /

Partics and Services Adlscation Exchange Expense Purchases
Dreshbil A%, - E56. 400 §2.600 919 0040
Neteks Teknoloji (*) 8.751.222 1.327.32% 16,965 10.095.512
Tatal 8.751.222 2.183.715 79.565 11.004.512

{*}On 28 February 2020, Indeks Bilgisayar's effective ownership interest rate has changed following the scquisition of
£0,00% shares from Meteks lletisim %rﬂnl:ri Dagitim A.S. and Neteks Teknolofi Urinleri A5 and effective ownership
interest rate increased from 50,00% to 100% with the additional acquisition of share purchase. Includes the amounts for sales
and purchases until 29 February 2020.
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Benefits and Services Provided for Senior Management:

Account Name Janumary 1, 2021 January 1, 2020

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Short-Term Benefits Provided to Management Staff 18.174.829 15.741.522
Employment Termination Benefits - -
Other long term benefits - 5
Taital 18.174.819 15.741.522

Key management compensation include the benefits and services provided to the senior management and the remuneration
of the general manager and assistant general managers.

MOTE 38 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS DERIVED FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Management

{a) Capital Risk Management

The Group’s main objectives for capital management are to keep the Group's ability to continue as a going concem in order
to provide retums for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to makntain an optimal capital structure o reduce
the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts includes the credits explained in note 8, cash and cash equivalents
explained in Note 6 and resource items containing respectively issued capital, capital reserves, profit reserves and profits of
previous years explained in Note 27, Risks, pssociated with each capital class, and the senior managemen evaluates the capital
cost. T is aimed that the capital structure will be stabilized by means of new borrowings or repaving the existing debis as
well as dividend payments and new share issugnces based on the senior management evaluations.

The Group monitors capisal by using the debt to total capital ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total capital.
Met debt is calculsted by deducting cash and cash equivalents from the total debt amount (as ghown in the balance sheet,

toans, financial leasing and trade payables). Total capital is calculated by summing the equity and net debt as shown in the
balance sheel.

General strategy based on the Group's equity does not differ from the previous period.

Consolidated net financial debt/invested capital ratios as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Total Liabilities £ 855 189.241 3.394.442.947
Negative: Cash and Cash Equivalents (2,095,002 284) {1.318.062.511)
Met Liabilities 3. 76, | BO9ST 2075480436
Total Equity 1.2 952 AR5 G, 930, 195
Tuotal Capital 4.R857,139.442 T4 410631
Net Liahilities Total Capital Rate T7.50% T5,68%

{b) Significant accounting policics
The Group's significant accounting policies relating 1o financial instruments are presented in the Note I,

() Risks

Because of its operations, the Group ks exposed to financial risks related to exchange rtes and interest rates. The Group also
holds the financial instraments risk that other party not be able to meet the requirements of the agresment.

Market risks seen #t the level of Group are measured according to the sensitivity analysis principle. Market risks faced by
the Group in current period or the process of undenaking the faced risks or the process of the measure of faced risks were
not changed compare 1o previous year.
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(1) Foreign Exchange Risk

The difference between the foreign currency denominated and foreign currency indexed assets and liabilities for USD and
EURG of the Group are defined as the “Net forcign currency position” and it is the basis of the currency risk. Another
important dimension of the currency risk exposure is the transactions of the Group. These risks arise from the Group's
purchase and sale of goods and services in a foreign currency and the use of foreign currency bank borrowings.

The Group management evaluates and monitors the balance of the assets and liabilities denominated in Turkish Lira as open
positions. As of 31 December 2021 and 2020, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are as follows:

As of 31 December 2021, if EUR and USD had appreciated by 1026 against TL with all other variables held constant, profit
before tax would have been TL 132.635.257 higher. (31 December 2020: TL 55.705.786 higher)

F E B be Sensitivity Analysis Tahle
Current Period December 31, TOT1

Profit / Loss
Appreciation of Foreign D prociation of Foreign
{mrremey Currency
In the evest of 10%6 value change of US Dollar against TL;
1= LIS Diollar Mot Adset | Lisbality | 305646, 137 {130 566.137)
2. The part, hedged from LS Dollar Risk (<)
- IS Dallar Mol Effect (1+3) 130566, 137 {1 HL566.13T)
In the event of 10% value change of Eure agass TL
4 o Met Asset! (L iahilites) 1068130 (2069120
5- The past, Bedged from Euro Risk (=)
= Emro Net Effect (445} 3 069,130 L.065.130)
Lol 132435257 (132638287
F nE i Rate Semsitvity Amalysis Table
Currend Period December 51, 2020
Profit / Liss
Appreciation of Foreign Depreciation of Foreign
vy CRrreney
In the evemt of 10%, value change of US Dolkar agamst T1;
1- LIS D3allar Met Asset / Linbality 54 580 560 {5 5D 560
- The pant, hedged from US Dollar Risk (-p
3- 1’5 Dollar Net Effect (141} b e ] (54.509.569)
Is the event of | %4 vabse change of Euns agmsa TL
4- Euro et Asset! (| Lisbilicies) LI62T (L116.217)
= The part, hedged (vom Eure Risk (<)
- Eura Net Effect (4+5) 1106217 (1106217
Totsl 55,705,786 (B THETRE)
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INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAY] VE TICARET AS.
31 Aralik 2021 Tarihinde Sona Eren Hesap Donemine Ait Konsolide Finansal Tablolara (ligkin Notlar
{ Tutarlar, aksi belirtilmedikge Tiirk Lirast olarak gosterilmiptiv)

Receivables
Current Period {December 31, 2021 ) Trade Receivables Other Receivahles
Past dwe up to 1 month 4,394,168 -
Past due 1-3 months 2332180 .
Past due more than 3 months 1.724.360 -
_Secured with guaraniees 6.572.720 -
Receivables
Previous Period (December 31, 2020) Trade Receivahbles Other Receivables
Past duse up to | month IA481.252 .
Past due 1-3 months 1.253.082 -
Past due more than 3 months 417.867 -
Secured with guarantees 4.019.198 -

As collaterals obtained from customers and notes and letters of guarantee have been taken into consideration as factors that
increase collateral and credit reliability.

Indeks Bilgisayar's collection risk arises mainly from its trade reccivables. Almost all of the trade receivables are due 10
receivables from dealers, The Group has established an effective control system on jis dealers and the credit risk arising from
these transactions is followed by the risk management team and the Group management and limits are set for each dealer and
limits are revised when necessary. Receiving sufficient collateral from dealers is another method used in the management of
eredit risk. The Group does not have a significant trade receivable risk due to the fact that it is a creditor from a large number
of customers rather than a small number of customers. Trade receivables are evaluated by taking into consideration the past
experiences and current economic sitsation of the Group management and are presented on the balance sheet net of provision
for doubtfal reccivables. The low profit margin of the sector due to the structure of the sector makes collection and risk
tracking policies significant for the Group and maximum sensitivity is presented accordingly. Our detailed explanations on
our collection and risk management policy are as follows.

For receivables exceeding the maturity of several months. enforcement proceedings and / or lawsuits are filed. The same
process could be executed some dealers who are in financial stress, Since profit margins in the sector are low, collection of
receivables is extremely important. There are current accounts and risk management units in order to reduce the risk of
receivables with credibility evaluations are made through dealers. Cash collections are made from the rescliers who are new
or risky and sales are made.

The Group sells goods o Turkey in nearly every enlerprise engaged in the buying and sclling of computers. The capital

structure of the dealers, which are defined as the classic dealers within the distribution channel, & low, This group of dealers,

which is estimated to be around 5,000 in Turkey, takes the risk in terms of risk management, the Group has ¢stablished its

rf:m organization and working system to minimize the group and take necessary measures, Measures taken con be listed as
Hows:

Cash collecting procedure with companies that have not completed | year in the sector: [ the sector, it ks worked with cash
collecting with the computer companies that have not completed | year.

The intelligence team, which consists of two personnel who are structured within the current accounts and risk management
department, constantly make the intelligence of the dealers.

Credit Committee: The necessary intelligence services of the companies that have completed one year in the sector and the
credit limit increase are arranged by the intelligence team and presented to the credit commitiee collected every week. The
credit committee consists of the finance manager, current accounts manager, intelligence staff and the sales department
manager of the relevant customer, under the chairmanship of the deputy general manager in charge of financial affairs. The
credit committee establishes credit limits 1o firms based on the information obtained and past payment and sales performance.
It determines the mode of operation and, if necessary, requests the collateral to be received from the dealer.

The Group's sales have been spread across Turkey and it reduces the risk of condensation.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH
INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EXNDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
fAmounts ore @xpressed i ¢ T1. ) wnileas othenie madicald |

Trade receivables are evaluated by tking into consideration the Group policies and procedures and accordingly, and doubtful
receivahles are presented in the balance sheet accordingly. (Note 10).

(e3) Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed 1o interest rate risk arising from the rate changes on interesi-bearing linbilities and assets. The Group
manages this risk by balancing the repricing terms of interest-bearing assets and linbilities with fixed and floating interest
and short-long term nature of borrowings as well as using derivative instraments for hedging purposes. The Group's fixed
interest rate financial liabilities are disclosed in Note 8 and their fixed rate assets (deposits, elc.) in MNote 6.

Interest Rate Position Table
o Current Period  Previous Period
Fized Intercst Rate Financial Instruments
Financial Assets 268500851 S11.170,500
Finaneial Liabilities 1,127,697 444 Bbd 50T 553
Floating Interest Rate Financial Instruments
Financial Assets - )
Financial Liahilities - -

As of December 31, 2021, in the case of 100 bps rise in the annual interests, with all other variables held constant, profit
before tax would have been TL 8.591.066 lower, (31 December 2020: TL 3.534.271 higher).

A significant portion of the Group's fixed-rate assets and linbilities are short-term. Therefore, fixed interest assets and
libilities are taken into consideration in the interest rate risk calculation. There is no interest rate risk conskdering only assets
and liabilities with floating interest rates.

(e4) Liguidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that a Group will be unable to meet its funding needs. Prudent liquidity risk management is 1o provide
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, to enable funding with the support of credit limits provided by reliable credit institutions

and 1o close funding deficit. The Group provides funding by balancing cash inflows and outflows through the provision of
credit lines in the business environment.

Liguidity risk statements

Prudent liquidity risk management signifies maintaining sufficient cash, the utility of fund sources by sufficient credit
transactions and the ability to close out market positions.

The ability to fund existing and prospective debt requirements is managed by maintaining the availability of adequate and
high quality lenders.

Undiscounted contractual cash fows of the consolidated financial liabilitses as of 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

L.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH
INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAY] VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{dmounty are expressed m (“TL ") imiess obwenise indicased |

December 31, 2021
Cash Owiflows
Tatal As Per the
Expeeted Terms Book ¥alwe Agrecment Less thas 3 Mosths  3-12 Monihs 15 Years More Bhan 5 Y ears
Mon-Derivalive Fisancial
1Lk hilithes 5413204852 467 A3E.5T] S 047243005 BT AR RS el
Hand Logna L114335m1 1157095 K28 00 % 627 E56.RET.200 =
Lactaa odiligmtions 13364 433 15.982.221 2443 854 6032158 TaG 212
Tradde Lihilives 4.253.217 508 4 262 26T 4262 70 6T £ .
_{‘."nh-r Liohildies ; 33 IR% R4 32 239 443 12 2E0 B4 o - -
Cash Ouiflows Toesl
As Per the
Expecied Terms Book YValee Agreemend Less than 3 Monghs %03 Momths  1-5Wears  More than £ Vears
Dervative Finaneial
Linkilities el L L BLIITATE I1E523T (1 326.563)
Derfarne Cash fglos H25643 560 G5 63 560 Gl 2 A 31] 13 0RLAGT
Dertvative Cash Ouiflows {582 HU2.BTL) {400.315.885] (FTRG08.016)  (14.407.869) . .

Forward transactions mclude USD 46.825.335 and EUR 100,000 equivalent of Turkish Lira. While calculating the labilities,
cash outflows have been calculated by considering the exchange rates at the end of the term, Cash inflows have been
calculated considering the closing exchange rate as of December 31, 2021, Actual profit or loss will be determined at the

maturity dote.

December 31, 2028
Cesh Oratflows
Total As Fer the
Expecied Terms Book Valse Agreemeni Less than 3 Months 31T Mot I-5 Years Alore than 3 Years
Saons[herivalive Fisaneial
Liabilsties L rraanLang 221 TRE TR LOTEITO4TR T2L & T 7Y e WE T =
Hank Loany B47.582.286 R&0.5%0, 727 TR 106 AR LFEEEEN : -
Lese odligarions 175 267 2] .637.750 2 17 OES hosn] 343 IETES I3 -
Trade Labifines 1290 641395 2.297 545 552 2.297 543552 = - -
ke Liahilmies 33453 Ta8 F1453.746 32453 74h . « -
Cash Owiflows Toasl
A Per the
Mw '-I.]E Book Valee Agreemeint Less than 3 Mamths  3-17 Manths 15 Years  Aore than 8 Years
Derivative Financial
Lisbilitses {27.721.051) {5 AR ) (29.81%.4rk2) (E829.399) = -
Deivptive Canh Infiows F48. 700 845 J4K TOL 445 TR TILE 38.970.237 - -
D pveanve Coenk Churflows T A3 07 BB T BAS) (319550, 2500 (64750 635} - «

Forward transactions include USD 47.337.573 USD and EUR 135.435 equivalent of Turkish Lira. While calculating the
liabilities. cash outflows have been calculated by considering the exchange rates at the end of the term. Cash inflows have
been calculated considering the closing exchange rate as of December 31, 2020, Actual profit or loss will be determined at
the maturity date.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

iNDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
{lamcnanis are expreiaed i {7 TL ") unless otheneise indicoled |

o8} Cther Rigks Anafvsi
Common Stocks, erc. Risks Related to Firancial Instriments
The Group does not have any securities and similar financial assets sensitive to changes in fair value.

MNOTE 3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

. ial Risk M
The Group is exposed o vasiety of financial risks due 10 its operations. These risks include credit risk, market risk {foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, commodity price risk and product profit margin/crack margin risk) and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management strategy focuses on the unprediciability of financial markets and targets to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group also uses derivative instruments to hedge risk
EXPISAIRES.

Fair Valoe of Financial Instruments

Fair value is the amount for which a financial instrument could be exchanged, or a liobility settled berween, willing parties
during current transaction, other than in a forced sale or liquidation, and is best evidenced through a quoted market price, if
one exisis.

The Group determined fair value of financial instruments by using available market information and appropriate valuation
methods. However, evaluating the market information and forecasting the real values requires interpretation. As a result, the
estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Group could realize in a current marked exchange.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments:

Financial Asseis

Financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign exchanges have been translated into Turkish Lira at the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign exchanges
are considered to approximate their respective camying values.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents including cash in hand and demand deposits, accrued interests and other
financial assets are considered to approximate their respective carrying values due to their short-term nature and insignificant
credit risk.

The carrying values of trade receivables after deduction of provision for doubtful receivables are considered to aApproximate
their respective carrying values.

Finnneial Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign exchanges have been ranslated info Turkish Lira af the exchange rates

prevailing at the balance sheet date. The carrying values of Financial assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign exchanges
are considered to approximate their respective carrying values,

The fair values of trade payables, bank borrowings and other monetary liabilities are considered to approximate their
respective carmying values due to their short-term nafure.

Fair value estimation:

Effective from 1 January 2009, the Group has applied the amendment to TFRS 7 for financial instruments measured at fair
value in the balance sheet, This amendment is explained on the basis of the levels in the following calculation hicrarchy of
the fair valee calculations.

The classification of the Group's consolidated financial assets and liabilities at fair value is as follows;

Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities: The Fair value of finoncial asseis and
financial liabilities are determined with reference 1o quoted market prices.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY
ISSUED IN TURKISH

INDEKS BILGISAYAR SISTEMLERI MUHENDISLIK SANAYI VE TICARET AS.

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
bl aaret éxpreaind o (TL ) wsiliees oubiriisg sadlicoved )

Level 2: Inputs other than gquoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
{that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices): The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilites are
determined m accordance with generally sccepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
obwervable current market transactions

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign exchanges are considered to approximate their
respective carying values.
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no financial investments. (Level 2) (Note 7)

The fair values of certain financinl assets carried at amortized cost, such as cash and cash equivalents, are considered 10
approximate their respective carrying values due to their shor-term nature,

Trade receivables and payables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, and are therefore
considersd to approximate their fair values,

NOTES 40 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Mone.

MOTE 41 THE OTHER MATTERS WHICH SUBSTANTIALLY AFFECT THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OR ARE REQUIRED TO BE DESCRIBED IN TERMS OF MAKING THE CONSOLIDATED FINARNTCIAL
STATEMENTS CLEAR, INTERFRETABLE AND UNDERSTANDABLE

Mone.




